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STATE OF NEW HAMPSfflRE ^ ̂
Office of Strategic Initiatives / j

107 Pleasant Street, Johnson Hall ^
Concord, NH 03301-3834

Telephone: (603) 271-2155CHRISTOPHER t.Sununu Fax: (603) 271-2615 Division OF Energy
Governor ^ ' www.nh.gov/osi

June 1,2020

I lls Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

RKOUESI FJ) ACTION

1) Aulhorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract with Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc. (VC //177195), Berlin, NH, in the amount of $364,012.00 for the
federal Weathcrizalion Assistance Program (WAP) effective July 1, 2020, upon approval of Governor and
Executive Council, through June 30, 2021. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in FY 2021 upon
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget:

Office of Strategic Initiatives. Low Income Weathcrizalion FY 2021

01 -02-02-024010-77060000-074-500587

Grant for Pub. Assist & Relief $364,012.00

2) Further request authorization to advance to the vendor $60,982.00 of the above-referenced contract
amount.

EXl^LANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of U.S. Department of Energy's (USDOE) grant guidance
(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization Assistance
Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients eligible for the
Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), and their historical performance delivering the weathcrizalion
program.

OSI is responsible for administering New Hampshire's statewide Weatherization Assistance Program,
funded by a grant from USDOE. The objective of the program is to wcatherize homes to reduce energy
consumption and energy costs in eligible low income households. Priority is given to households that
include people who arc elderly, disabled, or children, and households with high energy usage. OSI contracts
with New Hampshire's Community Action Agencies to provide weatherization services at the local level.
OSI estimates that the USDOE's WAP grant award to New I lampshire will contribute to the weatherization
of approximately two hundred and two (202) homes in the State.

The requested advance of funds will enable Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. to operate the
program between monthly reimbursements from the State, and may only be used for allowable program
expenses as detailed in Exhibit C.

TOO Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



His Excellency, Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

June 1, 2020
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In the event Eederal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
contract.

Rcspccil)>l4^ft^bmilled,

Jared Chicoine

Director

Attachments

G&C 06/24/2020



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its atiachmenis shall become public upon submission to Governor, and
Executive,Council for approval. Any information that is private,.confidential.of pfopriciary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in uTitihg prior to signing-the connect.

AGREEMENT

The Statc of New Hampshire and the Cpnlractpr hereby mulually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Slate-Agency Name
Office of Strategic initiatives

1,2, Stale Agency Address
1.07 Pleasant Street, Johiison Hall

Cbiicbrd, New Hampshire 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Tri-Couiity Community Action Program. Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

30;Exchange Street. Berlin, NH 03570

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 752-7001

1.6 Account Nuthber"

01 -02-02-0^010-77060000-
,500587

1.7 Completion Date
June 30, ,2021

1.8 Price Limitation

S364.012.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
ICirk Stone, Weaiherization Program Manager

1.10 Siate Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-2155

1.11 Contfaclor Signature A 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Jeanne Robillard, CEO

1.13 State AgencV^i^a'tur^ 1.14 Natnc-and Title-of State Agency Signatory

\ A ij/Approval by the:h?.Fr.""D^artmcnt ol Administration,-Division of Personnel (if'applicdhle)

j By: Director, On:

f.\6 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Executipri) (ifopplicdble)

1.17 "^prpval by the Governor and Executivc.Council (if applicah/e)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages cpritractor identified in block- 1.3
("Cotitractdr") lo.pcrfonn, and the .Contractor shall'perform, the
work or wle ofgoods, orbotlt, identified and more.particularly
described in. the attached EXHIBIT B which, is incorporated
hercjti by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwthstahdihg any provision of. this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive..Couiicil of.the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agrcenient, and all obligations of the.parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and. Executive
Council approve this Agreement as. indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on .the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as.shown in block 1.13 C'Effective Date").
3.2 If the (Cortiractor, cbnithences. the. Services prior to the
Effective Date, ali Sen;ices perfbiroed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be i^ifoiThed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in'ihe event that'this Agreement does not become
effective, the Stale shall have tio liability tO; the Contractor,
including without. limitation; aii'y bbligatiori to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred .of Services performed.
Contractor must complete ail Services by the Cdfhpletioh Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agfecmerit to the.
contrary, all obligations of the .State! Tereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the.availabiiity and coritinued apprbpfiatiop.of
fiindsi affected by aiiy state' or federal legLslative. or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or oiher>vise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding, for'lhis Agreement ̂ "d
the Scope for Ser\'ices provided in EXHIBIT B; in whole of'in
pari. In no event shall the" Slate be, liable'for any payin'ents
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or'termination of appropriated funds, Tlie
State shall have the right to withhold payment, until such .funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to I'cduce or
terminate the Services, under this Agreement.immediately upoii
giving the Contractor, notice of such ireduction or termination.
The. Slate shall not be required to transfer fundis from any other
account or source to the Account identified.in block l.6.in the
event,funds in ihat Account are reduced or unavailable;

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method oFpayment, and terms of payment
ai'c identified and-more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by.reference.
5:2 The paymerit by the Stale of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other, than tlie contract.pricc.
5.3 The State res.eives ihc right to .ofTset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor undci^ this Agreement those
liquidated anipunts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through' RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of.Iaw.
5.4 Notwithstaitding any provision in this Agreement' to the
contrary, ̂ d notwithstanding iihexpecjed circumstances, in no
event shall the'iotal of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder; exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8..

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of'the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with, all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal; statel county or rnunicipal
authorities which impose any obligation, or duty tippn !the
Coniractor, including, bui hot limited to, civil rights and equal
cmploymcnt.opportuniiy laws. In addition, if.this Agreement is
funded in any part by titohies of the Uhitcd Stales, the Cpniraclpr
.shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulatioiis
and stamtes, and with any rules, regulation.s and guidelines as the,
State or the United States issue to implcincrit Ihwe regulations.
The Conu^cior shall also comply with all apphcabie mtellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of.this Agreement,.the Goiitractprshali hpt
discriminate again.st employees or appiic'ants for cin'ployiheht
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, .sex-, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affinnative actioh'to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United S.tatcs
access lo:any of the Goniractorls books, records and accounts ifor
the.purposc of a.scenaining compliance with all rules, regujations
and orders, and. the covenani.s, terms and. conditions of'^is
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

?. 1 The Contractor shall at iLs:own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Scr\nccs. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall bc qualified to
perfpim the Services; and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under.all applicable.laws.
7.2, Unless otherwise, authorized in. writing; during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (iS) months after tlie
(Completion.Date in block 1.7, the Contractor, shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person; finn ,or
cprpbraiioii with, whom it is. engaged.in a xombined! effort to
perform the Seri/ices.to hire, any person who is a State employee
or ofTicial, who is, materially involved in the procurement,
admini.straiion of performance of ihis: Agreement. This
provision shall survive terhiinatioh of this.Agreemenl.,
7.3 The Contfactihg Officcf specified in block. r.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In.theeyent of any
dispute concerning the ihtcrpfetatibn of this Agreement; the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the'State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1. Any one or more of ihc foliGwing acts or omissions of the
Contraclor shall constitulc an event of default hcreunder (-'Evcni
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcreunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to peribnii any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occun^hce of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the, following actions;
8.2.1. give the Contractor a witten notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in thc absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, lliirty (3,0) days from the
dale of the notice; and ifthe Event of Default is not time|y cured,
lerminatc this Agrecirient, effective two (2) da>'s after giving the
Contractor notice of (crmiriaiibh;
8.-2.2 give the Co.ntniclo,r a writtcn;noiicc,specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made lirider this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the. contract price
which would othetSvi.se accrue, to the Contractor during the
period from ̂ e date of such notice until such time as the State
deteriiiines that tlie Contractor has cured the Event,of Default
•shall never be paid to lite Coniracior;
8.2.3 give the Contractor'a svritlcn notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations: the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffefs by'i^soh of
any Event.of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a urittcn notice specifyihg.the Event of
Default, treat the Agrceihcnt as' breached, terminate the
Agrccmcnt-and pursue any of its remcdics.at la\yor in equity; or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisioii.s hereofaftcr
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiycr of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default; or any subse^qucnt Event of
Default. No cxprcs.s failure to enforce any Event of Dcfault^sh^l
be deemed a waivcrof the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisioas hereof-upon any further or olhcf Event of
Default on the part of ihe Contractor.

9.TERML\AtlON.
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion,,terminate.the, Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that-
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the" Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of tenhihaition, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail .all Services performed, and the contract price .earned, to.
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
cbiueiit, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical,to those of any Final Report described in ihe attached
EXHIBIT B..ln addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, vyithiri 15 days of notice of early lemiinalion, ..develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for serS'iccs under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, thi.s
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all stiidics, repofis,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rcproductioris, drawings, analyses, graphic
rqjresentations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documentSi all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased-wiih funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the Slate, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of dala requires
prior .uTittcn approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO.THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the Stale. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees,, agcnls.or members shall have authority to
bind the,State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. assignment/delecationvsubcontracts.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this,Agreement without the prior written noiice, which
shall be providcd'to.ilic State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State..For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control: shall coastitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series ofrclatcd transactions in'
which a third party, together with iLs affiliates, becomes ,lhe'
direct or indirect owiicr of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting ^arcs or sirnilar equity Interests, or combined voting
;ppwcr of the Contractor, or (b)'the mIc of all or substaniially all
of^ the assets of the Contractor.
12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted, by the,
Contractor without prior written noticciaitd.consetii of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bourid by any-provisions contained,
in a subcontract or'ari assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by. law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harinless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and'all .claims,
liabilities and costs for.any personal injur>; or prOpe.rty damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claim§ asscncd.agains't-
the State, its officers or employees, which an w oiit of (or which
may be claimed to arise out o.O the. acts or omission of the
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Contractor, or'Subcdntractprs, includmjg but, not limited to the
negltgeiice; reckless or interitional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for 'any costs incurred by the; Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contaihed'shallbe deemed to^co.nstitute.a waiver of (he sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved, to ihe
Slate. This cpvchani in paragraph 13 shall sur\'ivc ilie
terniihation of this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE.:
14:1 The Contractor shall, at its .sp|e expense, obtain &id
continuously maintain iri force, and shall require, any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14;1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all ciaims
of bodily, injur>', death or property darhage, in amounts of hot
less than $1,000,000 per dccurrence arid .$2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14. I v2 special cause of loss coverage forni covering al) property
subject to" subparagraph 10.2 herein; in an ariibunt riot less than
80% of ihe whole replacement v'aliie of the property.
14.2 The poiicics'dcscribed in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and cndorscmcnts approved.for use in the. Statc
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, arid
issued by insurers licensed in the Slate of New Hampshire;
1.4.3 The Contractor shall fiimish to the Contracting Oifflccr
identified in block j;9, or his or her successor, axertificate(s) of
linsurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer idehtified
in block .1.9, or his or, her successor, certincate(s) of insurance",
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement ho
later than ten (ICi) days prior to the expiration dale of each
insurance policy. The ccrtificalc(s) of insurance and any
renewals.thereof shall.beaitachcd and are Incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By-signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
arid.warrants that the Contractor is'in compliance.with or exempt
from, the requirements ofNiH. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation").
15.2: To the extent the Contractonis subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281:A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require aiiy subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in conneciidn with
acti.vities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to, this
Agreement. The Contractor.shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his;pr her successor, proof of Workers'
Coriipensatiori.in, the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-Ararid any .applicable rerie\s^l(s) thereof, which shall be
attached arid arc ihcbrporatcd liwein by reference. The State
shalj not be. responsible for payment of any Workers'
Cpmpensatipn premiuins or- for any other claim or benefit for
(Toritracipr, of ariy subcPntraclpr of eiripiPyee of Contractor,
which might, arise under applicable State of .New-Hampshire
Workers' Comperisation lasys in coririectiori with the
performance of the Seri'ices under this Agfccment,

16. NOTICE.-Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be dcemed;to have.becn duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a UnitediStates
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and r;4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an . instrument in wTiting signed by the

parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,,
.waiver of discharge by the.Governor and Executive Council,of
ihe State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
imder the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be gpypmed, interpreted.and cohsirucd in accordance with the

laws of ihe State of New.Hampshire, and is binding upon and
ihufes to.the benefit ofthc.parties and their respective successors
and.assigns. The wording used in this Agreemeni is the wording
chosen ,by the parties to express their mutual intent,.and no nile.
of corisifuclipn shall b.c applied agaiast or in .favor of any party.
Any actipnsjarising out of this Agreement shall be. brought and
fnairitained in New'Hampshife Superior Court which shall have -
exclusive jufisdictiori thereof.

l'9. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the eve.iil of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 fqrni (its modified.in EXHIBIT
A) and/br attachtricnts .and aritcri.dmerit;'the^^^ the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall con.tfbl.

'20. THIRD PARTIES, The parties hereto do not" intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agfeemeht, shall riot be
construed to.con'fcr any such benefit.

'21. HEADINGS. The headings ihrouglioui the Agreeinerit are
for reference purposes only, and. the words cbntaiiied thefein"
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, aniplify br aid in the
Intcipretationi construction or meaning of the provisions bf this
.Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISION^ Addiiional or hiodifVing
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are.'incprpprated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions ofthis
Agreemeni are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary, to.any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreementiwill remain in.full force and effect.

2^i. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in- a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the. entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes: all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
her.eoE
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. 2 CFR 200 as amended (ynifonm.Adminisirative.Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards), 10 CFR 440 dated Februaiy 1,2002 (Wcatherization Assistance Program), the New
Hampshire Weatherizalipn Assistance Program Slate Plan, Wcatherization Assistance Program Policies and
Procedures, and Field Guide arc all considered legally binding and enforceable documents undcr lhis
contract. OS! reserves the right.to use any legal remedy at its disposal including, but not limited to,
disallowance of costs, withholding of funds, suspension of agency personnel. disbamient of agency
personnel, disbarment of agencies and/or subcontractors from present or future contracts, and such other
legal remedies as determined to be appropriate by the New Hampshire Department of Justice in the
enforcement of rules and regulations pertaining to the Wcatherization Assistance Program.

2. An audit shall be made at the end of the Contractor's fiscal year in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpail F -
Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by
contract of grant'number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The .Contractor shall
utilize a competitive bidding process.to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

The audit report shall include a schedu|e of prior year's questioned costs along wiih a response to the current
status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters written.as a.result of the audit
along with the audit report shall be forwarded to OSI within one month of the time of receipt by. the
Contractor accompanied by an.action plan, if applicable, for each finding or questioned cost.

3- The following paragraph shall be added to paragraph 9 of the general provisions:

"9.4 All negotiated contracts (except those of $5,000 or less) awarded by Ihe Subgrantee shall allow OSI,
DOE, the Gompirollef General of the United Stales, or any duly authorized representatives, access,to any
books, documents,-papers, and records of the Subgrantee or their subcontractors, which are directly
pertinent tblthe Weatherization Assistance Program for the purpose of making audits, .examinations,
excerpts and transcription."

4. In paragraph 10 of the. general provisions, the following sentence shall be deleted: "The.Torm, subjectmatter,
content, and nuinber of copies of the Termination .Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described In EXHIBIT A.^^

5. Tlic costs charged under this contract shall be detcrmined as allpwablc under the cpst principles detailed in 2
CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost.Principles.

6. Program and financial.records pertaining to this contract shall bc.retained by the Contractor for 3 (three)
years from the.date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for awards that are renewed quarterly or
annually, from the.'date of the submission of the quarterly or annual financial report, as stated in 2 CFR
200.333 Retehtioh Requiremcnts for Records.

7. Kirk Stone, Weatherization Program,Manager of OSI, has been designated with the rcsppnsibiJUy for
overseeing this contract.

Exhibits A, B Silc
Initials^jgV^
bate:^ J9v\'c^
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8. The foilowing paragraphs shall be added to the general provisions:

"25. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL-FUNDING. It is understood and agre^ between,the parlies that
no portion of the "Grant" funds may be lised for the purpose of obtainihg'additlonal Federal funds
under any other law of the United Slates, except if autliorizcd under that law."

•■26. ASSURANCES/CERTrFICATIONS. The following are attached and signed; Certification Regarding
Drug-Free Workplace Requirements'; Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification Regarding
Debarmenl, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters; Certification Regarding the Americans With
Disabilities Act Compliance; Certificatipn Regarding.Environmental Tobacco Srrioke; Assurance.of
Compliance Nondiscrimination.in.Federally Assisted Programs; and Certification Regarding the
Federal Funding Accountability arid Transparency Compliance.

"27. COPELAND ANTl-RICKBACK ACT. All contracts and subgrahts in excess of $2,000.00 for
construction .or repair shall include a provision for compliance with Copcland "Anti-Kickbackr Act (18
use 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act provides
that each contractor, subcontract orsubgrantec shall be prohibited from inducing, by .any means, any
person emploj'edin the construction, completion or repair of public w.ofk, to give up.ariy part of the
compensation to which he.is otherwise entitled. The subgrantce should reportrall suspected violalions
loOSI."

"28. PROCUREMENT. .Subgrantce shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post
Federal Award Requirements - Procurement.Standards, with special emphasis on financial
procurement.(2 CFR 200 Subpart„F - Audit Rcquirernents) and property managefhcht (2 CFR 200
Subpart D - Post Federal Award Requirements - Propcrt>' Standards)"

"29. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT- All final required reports and reimbursement requests shall be
submitted to the State \vithin sixty (60) days of the completion date (Agreement Block "1.7)."

Exhibits A, B (S|^
Iniiials^VDateil^a<>
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EXHreiTB

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Tri-Courity Conununity Aclion Programy Inc., hereinafter 'ihe Contractor" or '•Subgranlee,"-agrees to
perromvweatherizatipn"'ser\'ices.and all additional services and other work necessary to-prpvide
WeatheriMliOn Assistance Program (WAP) services to eligible low income individuals in accordance with
the regulations setjorth by the U. S. Department of Energy in 10.CFR 440 dated February 1, 2002, and in 2
CFR 200 as amended, and in accordance with the provisions and procedures contained in the most recent.
New Hampshire Weatherizulibh Assistance Program (NHWAP) State Plan, Policies and.Procedures Manual,
Field Guide, and as otherwise administered by the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI).

Periodically OSJ may issue Subgrantee Guidance (SO) and S'ubgranlee Notices (SN),or other clarificaiions as
necessary,. All such changes shall be considered as incorporated into the NH Wcatherizalion Policies and
Proccdures.Mariual and Field Guide. The Contractor agrees to alter the Program procedures in accordance
with a SG, SN or other instructions.

The Subgrantee agrees to abide by changes jh liie NH Weatherization Assistance Program designed to
improve program delivery^ and.further agrees to perform Weatherization Program services in a manner that
will successfully iriteract with utilily adriiiiilstered energy efficiency programs for low-income households in
order to provide the best services for New Hampshire's low-Income Ivousehoids.

2. The contract period, to be known as Program Year 2020 (PY20), will commence on July 1. 2020, and will
have a completion dale of June 30,2021, subject to the approval of Governor and Executive Council.

3. Plans for expenditure of funds for Training and Technical, Assistance,.Program Implementation, and
Leveraging Activiiies must be defined in the Contractor's Management- Plan (CMP) andiapproyed by OS!
Requests to deviate fronvthe plan must be made in writing in advance, and approved By OSI as.prcscribed.in
the NH Policies atid Procedures Manual.

4. In PY20, Cbnlractor agrees to cOmple'te-Wealhcrizalion Services on forty-four (44) dweilihg uiiits accofdihg
to the-slandards outlined in the most recertt.NH Weatherization Policies and Procedures Manual and'Ficld
Guide.

(a) Weatherization SerN'iccs are intended to increase the energy efficiericy of the home, and to improve'lhe
home's comfort and.safely. A certified enei^y auditor first performs a.NHWAP energy audit,on the
hoine.using scientific lesi equipment;. Specific energy conservation measures and heating source repairs
are then implemented i.n order Of priority and cost effectiveness. This integrated acfiyity is carfied out in
accordance with provisions,and procedures outlined in the most recent NH Policies and Procedures
Manual and Field Guide.

(b) The miniiTium number of dwelling units and the amount of fxinds to'be expended shall conforin to the
provisions of this cont ract and shall be mcprpprated into thc GME. Deviations of more than 20% from
expected.dwelling unit goals.in any given quarter may result in a reduction of the contract amounts, and a
reallocation of fijnds to other contractors.

5. in accordance;with the US DOE's "Quality Work Plan" (QWP) and the provisions of Weatherization
Program Notice (WPN) 15-4
(httD://www.waptac.ore/daia/files/Website docs/Goveminent/Guidance/2014/WPN-15-4.pdf^. beginning
April 1, 2015, Contractor must have regular.and reliable access to properly trained and certified Quality
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Control lnspector(s), available as eillier.staff orcomracibrs. ablc to ftiHy function in that capacity. TTiis
contract provides funding.for.coniiriued training and technical assistance sulTicienl to allow the Contractor to
secure and niaintainahe skilled personnel necessary to meet the requirements of WPN 15-4.

6. All vvork.perfprmed under the Wcatherizatjoh Assistance Program (WAP) in New Hampshire, using federal
money from any WAP program year, must meet the minimum specifications defined in the US Department of
Energ>''s "Quality Work Plan" (QWP) and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). Details arc
presented in the Standard Work Specifications (SWS) for Home Energy Upgrades referred to in .US DOE
Wcalhcrization Program Notice 15-4 (see link in paragraph 5, above), as well as in the New Hampshire
Weatheriraiioh Assistance Program's Field Guide, as most recently amended, which govenis WAP work in
New Hampshire. Contractor must ensure, and be able to document fohOSI, that all staff and contractors who
will perfonn Wealherizaliori wofk.are properly trained and certified for ihat work and hayc been informed
that their work must mcerthe requirements of the SWS or dwelling units will not be considered complete and
reimbursement will not occur.

Exhibits A, B

Initials yt; .
Date 5521 *3?
Pugc 4'of 5

Award #DE-EE0p07935..CFDA //8t.042



EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In cpnsidcration of lhe satisfactory performance of the Services, the Stale agrees to pay the Contractor,
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc; in total, ihesurh of;

$ 364,012.00 (which hereinafter is referred to as tlic ''Contracted Amouht")Vof \vhich
$ 21,374.00 may be expended.for Administration,
$ •25,558.00 may. be expended for Trajnin'g & Techriical Assistance,
S  12,j 74.00 may be expended.for Health & Safety measures,
S 304,906.00 (the balance), to be spent on wealherization activities (Program Activity) and.
$ 60,982.00 will be. issued as a cash advance.

Drawdowns from the lota! contracted amount will be paid to the.,Contractor only afler written
documentation of cash nccd'is submitted to OSf DisburseriVent of the;cdhtfacied amount shall be made

in.accordance with the procedures established by the State and 2 CFR:200.3bi5(b) on an advance basis;
limited to minimum amounts needed; and be timed to be in accordance with the .actual, iirimediate cash
requifements of the Contractor in canying out tlie purpose:of the pro^am. The Contractor riiust-make
timely payments to (sub)(X)htractors in accordance with the contract provision's, Contractor shall submit
a payiTient request to OSI for each month of the contract-period. Payment' requests from Contractor'
shall be received at OSI no,later than the 15"' day of each^month, or the first business day following the
.15"'day.

Administrative costs.are provided to cover a.specified number of unit completions at minimal standards,
Administrative funds may be pro-rated by OSI if production unit conipletibhs do not meet expected, production

OS! may, as a function of its adrriinistrative oversight, modify contracted budget amounts as necessary to ensure
ihcefficient operation of the NHWAP as long as these: modi.ficdcxpenditure.s do hot exceed the Contracted
Amounl total.as specified-abdve.

All pbligatiohsipf ihe-Slate, including the continuance of any payments, are contingent upon the availability and
conlihued appropriation of funds for the servnces to be pro.vided;

E.xhibiis A, B
Initia

Date

Page 5 of 5
Award #DE-EE0007935,.CFDA #81.042



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The eomraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to:c6mply with.the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Ding-Free Workpiacc Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 G.S.C.
70,1 et seq.), and further agrees to'have the Contractor's represenialiYe, as identified in Sections 1.1 1 and 1.12 of
the Oenerai Provisions-execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE i - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERCV
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

This certificatibnJs feqiiired by the regulations implementing Sections 515)-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The.January-31,1989, regulations
.were amended arid'publishcd.as Part 1! of the May 25, 1990. Federal Reuister fpaees 216817216,91), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference,:sub-grantees aind subcontractors), prior-to award, that they will
mainfain:a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of thc rcgulation provides that a grantee (and,by inference,
subrgrantces and sub-contractors) that is a State may el.ectlto.rnake dne certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscalycar covered by thc'certificat ipn.
The certificate set.out below is a material representation of fact Lipoh which .reliance is placed when the agency
awards, the grant. False certi.fication or violation of.the certification shall bc:groundsTpr suspension of payment's,
suspension or tennination of grants, or.gpvemmcnt wide-suspension or debafment'. Contractors using this.fonn
slipuld send it to:

Director, New Hampshire OllFice of Strategic-Initiatives,
107 Pleasant Street, Johnson.Hall, Concord, NH 033()1

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or wilj continue to provide a drug-free! workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the-,uhlawful mahufactufc, distribution,
dispensing, posscssioh or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited in the granteels wprkplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against empJbyeesTof violation oTsiich prohibition;.

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inforin employees about:—

(I ) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee's policy ofhiaintaihihg.a drug-free workplace;
(3). Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4). The.penaltics that may be imposed.upon employeesTor drug-abuse violations occurring

in.the workplace; ■

(c) Making it a.-rcquircment that eaclremployee to be engaged in the perfoniiarice of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragfaph'(a) that, as a condition of
'cmpldymeht under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the temis of the statementyand
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the'workplace no later than five caleiidar days after such conviction;

Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
alternative I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US bEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) froni an emplpyee or otherwise receiving.actuai riotice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted.employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
ofTicer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include:lhc
identification numbcr(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 3,0 ealendardays of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consisteni'wiih the requirements of the Rehabililalipri Act of 197^ as
amended; or

(2) Requiring'such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation p'rogranvapproved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace thfOiigh implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (1).

(B) Tlie grantee,may insert in the space provided below the sitc(s) for",the pcrforihaiice of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county. Slate, zip code) (list each location)

30-E.xchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identi fied here.

Tfi-COunty community Action Program, Inc. July 1,2020-June 30,2021

Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certification

Jeanne Robillard, CED

Name and TiUe of Authorized Contractof Representative

Contractor Representative Signature Date

E.xhibits D tlini H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Conlraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to ccrhply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law IOj-121, Qovej-rinient wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31
U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the-Contractor's representative, as identified in Sectidris 1.1 1 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the follbwing Certificalibn:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Community SerN'ices Block Grant
LoW-lncome Home Energy Assistance Program
HRRP Program

WcatberizatioD Assistance Program

Contract Period.; July 1..2020-June 30, 2021
The undersigned certifies, to the best ofhis or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated-funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behal f,of the undersighed, to any
person for infiuencing or'attefnplihg ib influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an ofTiccr or employee of Congress, or an employee ofa Member of Congress In cbhhectiori
with ihe'aw'ardihg of any Federal cbntfact, cbntiriuaiion, renewal, amendment, on modification of any
Federal contract, ̂ aht, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-gfahtee or sub
contractor);

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencingor attempting to influence an officer or employee-of any agency, a,Mcfnber of Congress, an
officer or empioyec of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in,connection with this
Federal contract grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mciitibn sub.-gfahlee or'sub-
contractor), the undesigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit.E-L

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certificalion bc iricludcd Jn the award dbcumchl
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcbnlfacts. sub-grants, and,contracts;under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and:that ail sub-recipients shajl certify and disclo^ accbfdiiigly;

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reli^ce was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification.is a prerequisite for making or cntering into this iransaclion
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who-fails to file the.required ccrtificatibh shall be
subject to a civil penalty,qf.notjess than $10,000 and not.more than $100,000 for each such failure;

Jeanne RobiHard, CEO
Cofn^ctoMlepfesentative.Siignalure Contractor's Rcpresehtative Title

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

Tlie Cpntraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrecs;to comply with the provisions of
Executive Oiricc of the-President, Executive Order ! 2529 and 45 CFR Pan 76 regarding Debarment^ Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matter^, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, al.identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 .of the General Provisjons execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSiBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACnONS

Instructions- for Certification

(1) By signing and,submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability o.f a person to provide the.certification required below will nol nccessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Office of Strategic initiatives (OSI) detemiinatjOn whether to enter into this transaclion.
However, failure of the prospective primaiy participant to fiimish a certification or an explanation shall
disqualify such.person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification" in this clause is a riiatefial representation of fact upon which reliance \yas:placed.when QSl
detennined to enter into this transaction. If it is later detcmiincd that the prospective primary participant
knowingly rendered,an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedics'available.to the Federal
Goveniment, OSI may'terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primal participant shall provide immediate written.notice to the O'Sl agency to whom.this
proposal (contract) is submittcd'if at-any time the pro.spective primary participant iearhs that its;certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become citoncous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The tehns "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended^" "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person^" "primary covered tfansaction," "principal," "proposal," and "vbluntarily'excliided,"
as used in tliis clause, have themeanings set out in the Definitions and Gpvcragc'sections of the rules
implementing Execiitive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The. prospective pHrbary participant.agrees by submitting this proposal (cpntract)'thal, shP.uld the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a
person wlio is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible; or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by OS!.

(7) The prospective priihary participant fiirther agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include iheelause
tided "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspehsibn, lneligibilit>'and Voluntaiy: Exclusion -.Lower Tier
Covered Tfahsactions," provided by OSI, wilhout modificationi in all lower tier cpVefed transactions and in
all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in,a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant .in.a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not-debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from thc covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the^method and
frequency by which it.deiermines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but-is not required to,
check the Nori-prt>curemeht,List (of excluded; parlies).

(9) Nothing contained'in the foregoing shallbe construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. Tlie knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower lief covcred transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in additiori to other remedies
available to the Federal government, OSI.may tenriinate this transaction for cause or default.

Exhibits D'lhru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARV COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certijl'cation Regarding Dcbarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matten - Primary Covered Transactions

(1) 1"he prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief,'that it and its.
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred,.suspended, proposed for debarihent,.declared ineligible, of voluntarily
excluded from covcrisd transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against theni for cbmmissiori of fraud or a criminal ofTense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State of local).'transaction,
or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust-statutes or
cpmniission of cmbczzlerheni.fhcft, forgery, brihcry,'falsification or destruction of records,

making false statements,'pr receiving stolen property;

(c) are not, presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, Slate or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated iii paragraph (1) (b)
of this certification; and

(d) have not,- within a ,three-year period, preceding this application/proposal, had one or more public
transactions (Federal, Slate or local) terminated for cause or.default.

(2) Where the prospective primary .participant is.unable to certify to any of the statements in'tliis
certification, such prpspectjye paflicipaht.shail attach an.cxplahalion to this proposal (contract-

Ccriificdtion Regarding Debarnient, Suspension, Incligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered. Transactions

0 o Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants),

By signing and.submitting this lower tier proposal fconiract), l.he prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
"45 CFR Part 76, cert ifies tpHhc best of.its knowledge and belief that it and. its principals:

(a) are not presently, debarred, suspended, proposed for debannent, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this.lransaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the.above, such
prospective participant shall attach.an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, lneligibilit>', and Voluntary' Exciiisidn - Lo.wer
Tier Covered Transactions^'\ wit[tput modification in.all'lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower, tier coverc

Jeanne Robillard, CEO

ContraclohRepYcscntative^Signature Contractor's,Repfcsehtati.ve Title:

Tri-Couhty Community. Action Program, Inc. ^
Contractor Name Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INrnATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in-Section 1.3 of the General Provisiohs agrees by signature of the Contractor's
.representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, tp execute the following
certification;

By signing and submitting this.proposal (contract)'the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforis-to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Jeanne Robillard. CEO

.CbritrMor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Contractor Name Date

Exhibits D thai H

Initials

Award ff DE-EE0007935, CFDA #81.042



NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARI) EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION

Public Law 103-227, Part C

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public, Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, .also known as the. Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be pennitted in any portion of any itidoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health; day care, education, of library services to
children under thc.age of I8, jf the services:are,funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or
local governments, by Federal grant, coniract, loan, or loan guarantee,.

The law does not apply to children's services,provided in private residences, facilities ftinded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and poilions ofTacilities used,for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment;

Failure to comply with the provisions; of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/of the imposition of an administrative compliance order, oh the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the^applicant/grantee certifies that it will comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The applicant/grantee further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be included in any
su.bawards which,contain pfovisioiis forthe children's services and ihat.all subgrantees shall,certify accordingly..

Jeanne'Robillard. GEO

Gontra^fefrlleprese'ntative Signature Gontractor's Representative' Title

Tri Gounty-Gommunity Action Program, Inc;
Contractor Name Date

Exhibits D thru H
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DOEF 1600.5 (06-W)
OMSContrd No. I9I0-0400

All OtiiCT Bdiiions.Are Obsolete

NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT i

U S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY A.SSISTED
PROGRAMS

0MB Burden Disclosure Statement

Public reporting burden forthis collection of inrormatibn is estimated to average 15 minutes per response,
including ihe^time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of inforinalioh'. Send comments regarding this burden
estimate or any othcraspeci of this collection of information, including-suggestions for reducing this burden, to
Office of bform'ation Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Ove^rsighi, Rec.prds Management Division, HR-
422 - GTN, Papcrv,'ork Reduction Project:(t910-0400), U.S. D^arlment of Energy, 1000,'independence Avenue,
S.W., Washington, DC 20585;,and to the Office ofManagement.and Budgei'(OMB), Rapem'dfk Reduction
Project (1910-0400), Washington, DC 20503.

Tri-CbuDt\' Cbmniunitv Action Program. Inc. (Hereinafter called the "Applicant") HEREBV AGREES to
comply wilh.Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Section .16 of the Federal Energy
AdministraUqn Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Section 401 oflhe Energy ReorganlEation Act of 1974 (Piib. L. 93-
438), Title LX of lhe Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L.
94-482), Section 504 of the.Rchabilitatioii Act of 1973 (Pub; L..93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975
(Pub. L. 94-135), Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 9()-284), the Department;of Energy
Organization Act of 1977 (Pub. L. 95-91); the Energy-Conservation and Production Act of 1976, as amended,
(Pub. L. 94-385) and Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1040. In accordance with the above laws and
regulaliohlissucd pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrees to assure that np'pcrsoh in the United States shall„on
the ground of race,-color, national origin, sex, age; or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or be blherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity'ih which the Applicant ,
receives Federal assistance from the Department of Energy.

Applicabilit>\an'd Period of Obligation
In the case^ofany service, financial aid, covered, employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased,
or improved with Federal assist.ance;cxlctided to the. Applicant by the Department of Energy, this assurance
obligates the Applicant, for the period during which Federal, assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of
such service, financial aid, equipmem, property, br strtjcture, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period
during which Federal assiistance is extcnded. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates tije
Applicanf fbrthc-pcriod during, which it retains ownership or possession of.the property.,In ail.other cases, this
assurance obligates the Applicant for the period dufirig whicli the Federal assistance is^extendcd to the Applicant
by the Dep.artmehl of Energy;

Eniployment Practices
Where a primary objieciive of the Federal assistance is to provide cmplpymenl or where the Applicant's
employment practices,afTccl the delivery of scn'icesin programs of activities resulting from Federal assistance
extended by the Department, the Applicant,agrees not to discriminate on lhe ground of race, color, national
origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment-practices. Such employment practices may include, but are not
limited to,-recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or terinirialibn, promotion, demblion, transfer,.rates of pay,
training and participation.in upward mobility programs; or other forms of compensation .^d use of facilities.

Subrecipicbt Assurance

The Applicant shall require any individual, organization, or other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or

Exhibit 1
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subleases for the purpose of providing any service, finan'cia! aid, equipment, property, or structure to"comply
with laws and regulations cjled above. 'l o this end, the subrecipienl shall be required to sign a written assurance
fomi;.however, jlie obligation of both recipient and subrccipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the
collection or submission of written assurance.forms;

Data Collection aiid Access to Records

Tlie Applicant agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a
result of the Applicant's receipt of Federal.assistance from the Department .of Energy. Such informat ion shall
include, but is not limited to the following: (1.) the manner ih which services-are or will be provided and related
data necessai^.fpr determining whether any persons are or will be denied,such services ohlhe basis of prohibited
discriininatioh; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age and disability; (3)
data regarding cpyered emplpymcnt. including lise or planned use of bilingual public/contachCmployees serving
beneficiaries of the program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or
uhdcrsland English;: (4) the'location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related
information adequate fordeiermiiiing whether the location has orwill have the effect of unnecessarily denying
access to any person oh the basis of prohibited discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by race,
color, national origin, sex,-age and disability in any plahhing or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program; ̂ d (6) any additional written.dala determined by the Dq5^ment:pf .Energy lo be relevant to the
Obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws;cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.

The Applicant agrees;to submit'fequestcd data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and activities
developed by the Applicant from the use of Federal as.sisiance fuhds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of the Applicant (including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books,
accpunls, bth'ersoufccs.ofinformaiion pertinent lo the Appjicant's compliahce with the civil rights laws
shall bc;madc availablc^for inspection during normal business hours oh request of an officer or employccof the
Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be
provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideratioh of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans,
contracts.(excludihg;pfocuremcnt,contracts), property, discounts or other Federal assistance extendcd after the
.date hereof, lo the Applicants by the Departmenl Of Energ^y, including'installmcnt payments on account aft.er
such data of application for Federal assistance, which arc approved before such date. 'Die Applicant recognizes
and agrecsithat such Federal assistance will 1^ extended, in reljancc.uppn the,representations and agreements
made in4his assurance, and that the United States shall have the right-lo seek judicial enforcement of ihjs
assurance. This assurance is bindlng on the Applicant, the succes^rs; transferees, and assignees, as well as the
persoh(s) whose signatures appear below and who are authorized lo si^ this assurance ombehalf of the
Applicant.

Applicant Certification

the Applicant certifies that it has complied, or that , within 90 days Of the date of the grant, it will comply with
all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1^0.5 (a cppyiY"!)! bc.fumished to the Applicant upon written
request to DtDE). '

Jeanne Roblllafd, (pEO Signature \ Date

Tri^ounty Community Aciipn Program, Ii^
30 Exchange .Street; Berlin, NH 03570
603-752-7001

Exhibit I
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGlC INltlATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIum'

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1., 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier isub-grants of 525,000 or more.
If the initial award is below 525,000 but subsequent grant modifications'result in a total'award equal to or
oycr $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirernents, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporiing Sulxiward and Executive Compensation Informatibh), the
New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of,award

3) Funding.agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
.5)' Program source.
,6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Priiiciple place of performance
9) Unique identifier of.lhe entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the lop five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemmcnt,;and those
revenues are greater than S25M annually and

b. iCompensatibn information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients muM submit FFATA required data by the end of lite month, plus'30 days^ in which
the.award or award'amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of,the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding AccouniabiUty and Trahspafency Act,. Public Law 109r282, and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward aiid Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees tc haw the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General

Provisions execute the fpilOwing Gertilicalion:

Tlie below narned Contractor agrees to provide needed ihforihatiori as outiined above to the New
Hampshire.(Office Of Slfategic,Initiatives and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accq*|nlabilj|ty anc^ransparency Act.

Jeanne Rbbillard, CEO

(Contractor Re)^sentaiive.Signa\ure) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Tri-Cbunty Community Action Program, Inc.

(Contractor Name) (Date)

Contractor initials:

Date: W
Page lof2 '
Award #DE-EE0007935,
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

i . The DUNS number fopyour entity is: 0"^

2. In your,business or organization's preceding compieted fiscal year, did your.business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more,of yoiir annual gross.rcvenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-gfants,.and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or mOfe ih annual gross revenue
from U.S. fejleral contracts^ subcontracts^ loans, grants, siibgrahts, arid/or cooperative agreements?

JO YES

If the, answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the following::

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organi^lion through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of thc.SecuriUcs Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C;78mCa), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to.#3 above is-NG, please answer the following:

4. Thc'naines and cornpehsation oflhe five most highly compensated Officers in yoiif business or
organization areasfoilows:

Name: Amount:

Name: . Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name:, Amount:

Name: Amount:

Contracio

Dale:

initials:

Page 2 of 2
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Stptc of ,the State of New Hanipshire, do hereby ccrtif)' that TRI-COUN'n' COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRi-GOUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18, 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Siate's;orfice'hove,

been received and1s in good sUnding as^far as this ofilce is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0004876884

HI

y

•9

<4(§>

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF;

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afTi.xed

the Seal of the State o'fNcw Hampshire,

this I st day of April A^D.'2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTES

(Corporate Au(hprity)

I. Sandy Alonzo Chair of tri-Coun(v Community Action Program. Inc.
(name) (pQT>9rat'9n

(hereinafterihe "Corporation"), a. New Hampshire coi^ration, hereby certify that:
(stale).

(1) I am'thc duiy elected and acting Chair of the Gorporation;;(2) 1 maintain and have custody arid am
familiarwiih;the minute books of the Corporation; (3) 1 am duly autKorized.to issue ccrtificates-with respect tcilhe
contents of such books; (4):that the Board of Directors of the ebtpora,tion,havc;aulhorized,.'6ri O I .

SLich authprity 10 .bc.iii force arid effect until June 30-2021.
(contract termination dale)

(date)

The persori(s) holding the below, listed position(s) arc authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the'
Cbfporaliori any contract,or other'iristniment for ihe^sale'of products-and services:

Jeanne Robillard
(name)'

Chief Executive Officer
(position)

(name) (position)

(5) the riieeting of the Bbafd.df'Difectors was'iield .iri accordarice with :New Hampshire
(state bfinco^ratiori)

law and-the by-iaws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modifiedi amended or rescinded
•and continues in .thil force and effwt as of the date .herepf

:rN,WlTNESS WHEREOF, fhave hereunio.sei my hand as,.the Chair of the corporation iliis
_ dayof May. 2020 .

STATE .OF New Hampshire
GOUNTYOFCoos

Chair

On thiS: .,day of May_ ,2020.

Officeri-persbnally appeared Satidv Alonzo.
of

^authorized

' Tri--(^AVP
i

., before-ine, ^Christina Morin.the undersigned
. Avho acknbvyledged herThimself to be the Chair

irtc-.
ithorized to (Jo so,-executed the foregoing insiruinstrum

a coiporation and.lhai she/he as such Chair
ent for the purposcs therein :contai'ned.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I hereunto set niy.hand andpftic;i^i;seaj,

Notaily^«t51faJusticc(o;f tJic Peace
Obmjnissibn'"ExpirationT)atc:. 12/19/23

.  ̂

CHRISTINA MOftti'Nuiiy P
^te pi I4ew Harrq^ire.

My ConwTtisckM' Empires December i9.2023



TRI-GOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

I7FY19 Board Resolution: Resolution ofthc Corporation

Authority to Sign

The .Board of Directors of Tri County Community Action Program, Inc. (the "Corporation")
lakes the following.aclion.

Rcsplvcd,

That the Tri-Couhiy Community Action Program, Inc. Chief Executive OfTiccr (CEO) Jeanne, L.

Robillard, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Randall S. Pilotte, and Chief Operating OlTicef
(COO) Regan L. Pride arc hereby authorized on behalf ofthis Corporation to enter into contracts
with the Federal Government, State of New Hampshire, and any other parties as deemed

ricccssary and lo execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments and
amendments, revisions or modifications thereto, as may be deem necessary, desirable of
appropriatc-for the corporation; this authorization being enforced and effective until June 30",
2020.

Attest, the fcsoluiidh ,adopted therein was duly authorized by the Board of Directors on June" 25
2019

Namcr'Sandy Alonho
Title: Board Chair

By:
Name: Cathy ray

Title: Board Treasurer



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MsuoanrrY)

02/25/2020

THiS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFPiRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETV^EN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. . . .

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED previsions or l>e endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsemenL A statement on
this certificate dees not confer rights to the certiflcate holder In lieu of such ehdorsement(s).

enooucER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

Karen Shaughnessy

(M3)669.3218- (603)545:4331

annftxx- l(shaughnessyQ|crossegency.com
MSURERtSI AFFOROWC COVERACE NAIC«

hsurera: Fhiladelphia Ins Co
INSURED

Tri-Counly Community Action Program. Inc

30 Exchange Street

Benin NH 03570

MSURERB'; Grshhe Ststa Health Cafe and Hitman Sorvicos Self-

MStMER c :

WSURER D :

WSURERE:

erSURER F :

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOVl' HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICV PERiOO
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE -VFORDEO.BY THE POLICIES DESCRIED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ̂ L THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IRSir
TYRE Of WaURANCE POLICY NUM8ER

POLKV EFF
rMMOOtYYYTI UMns i

A

X COMMERCIAL OElNERAL LIASAITV

E  |Xl OCCUR

PHPK2003516 07/01/2019 07/01/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
, 1.000.000

CLAMSMAO

EMUUIE .TO HLi/TLU
.PRFMISGS (E* eecurrcnrot.

, 100,000

MEO EXP (Am on* p*r«on)
, 5.000

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY
, 1.000.000

oem. AoaAeoATE umitapples pgr: GENERAL AGGREGATE
, 3.000.000

POLICY-1 rn LOC
OTHER:.

PRODUCTS • COMPtOP AGO
, 3.000.000

I

A

1 AUTOMoaLe LiABArrr

PHPK2003523 07/01/M19 07/01/2020

COMBINED MNGLE LUIT
'(E* •cdtJeml

t  1.000.000

X ANY AUTO

HEOULED
rros .
M^OWNEO
TOSONLY

BOCHLY euURY IPtr panwi) S'

OWNED
AUTOS Of AY
HREO

AUTOS OtAY

.sc
AL

BOOLY PUURY (P«r KCiMni) %

—

NC

.All

PROPERTY DALtAGE
IPm

t

$

A X

UMBRELLA LUa

EXCESS LIAO

X OCCUR

CLAIU&MAOG
PHUB683002 07/01/2019 07/01/2020

EACH OCCURREfKE
, 2,000.000

AGGREGATE.
, 2.000,000

1 DFO 1 XI RETENTION S 10.000 t

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UASOJTY ytN
ANYPROPRETOWPARTNEIVEXECiniVE. {"771
OKPICCRAEMBEK EXCLUOCD? | " \
(Man«*tory In NK) '
IVM, unMr
0ESCRPT1ON OF OPERATIONS bMM

NfA HCHS20200000241 (3a.) NH.

1

02/01/2020 02/01/2021

.•V PER 1 1 OIH-
STATUTE .1 1 ER

ELEACHACCOENT
, 1.000.000

E.L. CMS6AS6-. EA EMPLOYEE
, 1.000.000

E.L DISEASe • POLICY LBbUT
■, 1.(300.000

A
.Prblesslonal LiabSty

PHPK2003516
1

07/01/2019 6.7/01/2020
Each Occurrerwe

Aggregate

51.000.000

$3,000,000

DES(;RrTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHtCLES'tACORO 1«I. AddWenal R*iiw(1i> SctwMta. nuy M MUch*d H <nor« (pM* i* t*«tira«l

Nhi Office of Strategic (nlliadvei;
107 Pleasant Street

Johnson Hall

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCEUED BEFORE.
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTKE WILL BE DELIVEREO M
ACCORDANCE WITH THE PQUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTT4ORIZE0 REPRESENTATIVE

ACORO 25 (2016/03)

019&8-2D1S ACORO CORPORATION: Ail rights reserved.
The ACORD neme and logo are registered marks of ACORD



TR!-COUNTY
OMMUNITY ACTION

Serving Cods. Carroll A Grafton Counties since 1965

Board of Directors

FY2020

Coos County Carroll County Grafton County

Board Chair

Sandy Alonzp

Interim Board Chair

Anne. Barber

Linda Massimilla

Michael Dewar

Karblina Brzozbwska

Trlcia Garrison

Richard Mcleod

julie.Davis



Tri-Count)' Commurilty Action Program, Inc.

WAP Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer SI19,999

.Randal Pilotte Chief Financial Officer S77;850

Regan Pride Chief Operations' Officer $71,960

Gerald Milliken, Jr. Division Director $52,000

Nathan Mills Division Manager $45,011



JJeannc L. MobiDDard

rOBIE STIBEIVCTHIS

.Program dcvclopmciu, mnnagcmcin.and adniini.stration • (lomrnunit)' coltaboraiions
Dcvf!<jpmcnj fjf-prdicy, prpiocol, and sm'icc dciivay lo.meci fundcr siandards

Gram writing nnd management ♦ Budget performance and financial reporting
Innovative soiutions.&.problcm solving • Capacity building

Professional prcscniaiions ♦ Public speaking
l!)cdicaiioii •• Imagination ♦ Determination ♦ I'ortitude

n'WOFESSIOlVAIL EXU'EBBEiVClE

Tri>Couhir fi'ommunifr Action .ProgrnniK. .Inc.
l.liicf'E.vrutivcr Officer

llcrlin, IVII VT cntpioynioni

TrirCountj' f.'onimuiiitr Artion l*rugrnnia>.. Inc.
Chief 0|»«rn(iii|«.0ffircr
Berlin. Xll 2010

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs thai provide over
60 consumcr.scrN'ices across ilucc counties of fs'tirthern New Mampshirc. l-^sscniiai (iutics include;
supcr\-ision of Division Directors, oversee and moniior program resources, revenues, expenditures
and budget pcrforntance; tactical oversight of programs to meet (»r exceed agency xlcfined strategic
'goals; develop and intplcmciu sirnicgics to'improve individual programs and overall agency program
and fiscal, performance; oversee and lend special projects sucli as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,
Ctjmmunitv Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Managcmctu Team to dcvek.ip new
service itiitiatJves. Pr(»\'ide tactical guidance to Division Dircctors to troulilc slioot issues and prtihleiivs
in thir daily opclaiions of programs.

Tri'Counlr (.'oniniuiiilv Arlion i'rogrnms. Inc.
Hi I'iiviuii TfX'AI' I'rcvrntidii jf<rrvinf!v

Berlin. Xil 20i.>. 20i<i

.Rcsponsil>lc it.»r fi:)ur agency program.s under the umbrella of 'IXiC.AP Prevention Ser\:ices; oversee
division resources, revenues^ and expenditures and monitor budget pcrfonnaiVcc; general oversight of
programs to rncci or exceed agenc)' defined strategic goals;'Supervisc program directors: write grants
to support programs, monitor results^ and prepare grant reports and financial stnicmcms for fundcrs
and agency; develop fundraising and marketing strategics t'or programs; represent program through
paVdcipation in state and local initiatives relative to pfograin/divisibn goals and ser\'icc deliverx';
collaborate with stakeholders and elected tiffi.trialSi including prescia,img,lt;gislapve iesiihioiiy.

IVi-Coanlr Cbmhiiiiiily Artibh l*ru|>rnin.v. Ihr.

Progriim/Uivisioii Birorlort $up|>brl C«inlcr n< Burrii >llous<-.
Lillle<uii. Siir.«v liiini|iNliir«- ttdOTr 20i.f
Ot'crsee dailv o|X'rafion and siipeivision of domcstic.and sexual \'iolcnce crisis renter and residential
shelter; write gtanis.io support programs, mtmiior results, and prepare grant reports and financial
siatcmcht.s tor'funders a'nd parent agency; oversee prograhi resources, revenue's and expendirurcs, and
monii«>r bucjget performance and progres.s toward strategic goJils; create ant! direct victim adtxycacy
programs.io ensure compliance with grant deliverables.and applicable state anti federal law; deyclop
fundraising and niarkciing strategics; pa'rucipatc in state and local .collaborations id e'nliartce viciith
sctVices; represent prograria in suite and fedcra|'vicuiiy scrS'icc initiatives, iikluding presentation of
legislative testimony; create and preseh; riaiinings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices fijr victini sen'tces.



JL Robillard * 2

Bookkccpisr: AVdmcn's Honil Entrcprcnrurhil j\o.<«ork <WRE^'>
Urfhirbcni. iVII «-tirrrn< PT i-Biploviti«rnl

Responsible for gram fiscal H acking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi-wcckly pnyn>ll
aiul 941 paynKnts, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliations for bank accouiiis.
credit cards, pchy cash", retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation foi three, retail
locatipirs, prcpaiinc inonthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.

Tri>€ouul* Cunibiunil.* Action Pi-ogramK. Inc.
Ihrcrl .*»Vrvi«;K/*'olunlccr Coorflinnlor: .Support Center at Uurrb llouwc
Littleton. Sew llnnspshire IA97 to 2007
Providc^advocacy and direct sers-ice. to victims of domc.stic and sexual violence; siipcrvisc court
advocacy programs; recruit, train and soperx'isc staff, volunteers, and inrcrris; develop agency systems,
policies and protocols; create antl present community outreach prcscntHtions and campaigns; present
schonl-ba.scd violence prevention classes for gradc.s K-12 ; provitic on-call coverage of crisis line

Director: llQVcrhili Arco Juvenile Ulvnrvlon Progrnm
Woorlmllle; IVc.w linnipmbirc l»99»200l
Recruit, train, and super\'isc volunteer diversion conmiittccs; establish community programining for
diverted vouih; supportive counseling (if youth; maintain collaborative relationships between the Court
systcni, juvenile scr\-ice officers, Icrcal police departments, and diversion program; prepare and file
court reports oivdiverted youth; communitynutreach and cducatiim

Couiiwlor/Titic I Tcn«:l»cr: iVorlbcrii Fnniily in.*liiMtc..Jcffcr«ion Sbrllcr
Jcffcrfton. iVcw liamiMbirc I OOCm I f>fin
Provide individual supportive coun.scling to adjudicated yoiiili,.faciliiate peer supp<,>rt groups, develop
and implemei^i treatment plans and case nianagemeht se.r\'iccs to clients, supcivi.sc and tutor youth in
clas.sroom .setting, supcr>'ise youili in daily" living skills

IKdiiffAlion

It.S in iiiiniun .VcrviHra;; S|iriiigriclil College .<»chool of llunion .Service*, no.vloii. .*IA
Cririiinal justice Concentration, Cniffiiii/rfiwifh 4.0 C.PA

AS in i>ru(« mid Alcohol ncluibili^nlion C.'ounMding l>rui{rmti|
.S'oufhcrn l.'onncrilriil tlunimaiiifv College, !\'<",w llrai'cn, CTT

AddilionnI Xkillw. IPHififs-sional Lfcoclership niid Civic AWiliolions

♦ Chniiinan. Bethlelicm Boaril of .^•Iccimcii, 'I'own of Beihlchcni Twice Idccicd 2006-2OI0
♦ Chsiirrri.inpAiis .Mliance of Northern Mew Hampshire 2000-20<.Ky,.Tna.Mtfr l99r>-IV9S
♦ Chairnv.m. l lavtrhill Area Painily \'i«Menr"t- Council t99S-20(>.y
♦ Cenirted PRIMP. FOR I.IPli Impaired Driver imcivcniion Prograpi Instructor #NH16IW
♦. RegiMcred Sexual liarassmeni Prevention Trainer in the State ofNcw lianipshiro
♦ Boarri Member, Women's Rural r.nireprcncimal Nc'rwork 2014; h/ditit/u/i! 2(fOS-20l7
♦ Beiblchciu Planning Bisaid 2010 - 201 y

♦ Bethlehem Conscrv.-uion Coinmission 2006 ;aihvu/

♦ Granite United Way. Nordi Ciauniry Cabinet Mcnibcr 20} 1-20I2.
♦ TCGAP; Commendation- l^ivisirm Director .Nward. 201}
'♦ Betlilebcm Ciiixen's Advisoiy ('ommiriee on Recycling 200.'-201(}
'♦ IJcensed.i'oSier Parent, Siaic of NM ■2000-2(>06
-♦ Small Business Osvnet : Aurora iinergics 201:?-f/invii/
♦ Speakca.xv Trio jazj' Vocalist/ Sweet Jatnm Swing Band Jazz N'ocalisi l'29~- r.imiil
♦ Member; Uniie.l States i'igurc Skating Assrfciannn/imcrnatir.nal Skating In.siirure (umm i'mf I'JUJ



F(ANDALL S: PlLOTTE

S IJ M MAR A'

AccouiHitnj professional with over 29 years of experience, of which 21 years were wiih a single privaie inanutaciurcr.
16 years of experience managing nccouniing professional.s. Key compcicncics include;

Financial Starcmcnts Accouins Payablcs Invcniory Fixed Assets
PayToll Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables SalcsAJscTax
Budgeting Cash Flow Management Audits Forecasting

E X p i: R 1 1: N c K

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.. Berlin. Nil 06/20!3-Prescnl

CFO (2017-Present)
Work closely with the CI-.O, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify pcrforniancc goals for the Agency aiid to
maintain systems to monitor performance against those goals. Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the
financial managancittsystcm.<; and aciiviiics of the Agency with a budget ofSlSM.
•  l'rcparc/providc.s complete and accurate financial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency and outside

regulatory agencies.
•  A.S a member of the senior munageincnt team, assi.st.s in tlic formulation and execution of eoipornle finance

pdiicics; objectives and programs.
•  Prepares program and agency budgets in cohjiinctiou with the CEO and Prngratri. Directors. Plari. direct,

coordinate, i'mplcn»eni atid evaluate fiscal perforntancc reviews of Tri-Coiinty CAPs divisioits.
•  Hire, train,;dircct aiid evaluate employee performance within the departiiieni; recommend promotions and salary

adjustments.
•  Provides supcr\*ision and direction for the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that all inongagc.s. Ica.scs and

covenants are mairitoincil for Tri-County CAP's faeilitics. Creation oflivc-ycar eapiial plan;
•  Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash managctticnt practices, and inoniior invcsttncnts assiviatcd

with each property.
•  Prepared five-year debt fcductiuii plan.

Fiscal Dirt'clor/lnicrim CFO (2Cil6.- 2017)
.• Direct and manage a fiscal stufV, of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, pa)Toll, and accounts

payable, accounts receivable, cash rcccipi.s and fixed assets.
•  Prepare and supervise the production of firwmcia! siaiciiKm.s including Balance Sheet. Revenue and Expense

Rcppns.-ahd Cost Sumnuifics on a monthly and annual b'asi.s.
•  Maintain proper accounting controls on.grants and,contributions, to ensure aceuraic, revenue icponing and ekpcnse

rnicking Ib.stjppori periodic inoniioring's by ftmdcrs and auditors.
•' Ensure all balance Sheet, rcvcmic and expense accounts arc analyzed and reconciled periodically.
•  Gbllaboraie with Division Directors to monitor dcpartmehtul revenue and expenses wrsus budget.
•  Worked 'with 'the CFO to develop real linic nionthly aiid annijal financial reporting; and miplchicniing

dcpannKnial goals.

•  Prepare ttudit schedules for external auditors.
•  Collaborate with external auditors in completing annual audit in a timely manner.

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr. Accountant '(2013-20H)
RANDALL PlLOTTE RESUME:

KENT NUTRITION GROUP. INC. ff/'k/a Blue Seal Feed.s. Inc.). Londonderry. NH 03/1989-09/2010



Assislani Controller (2005-2010)

•  insured ajvnccunnc and linicly twnilily and year end close, consisnny of ilic preparation of a consolidated and
individual flnaricial statement in accordance with GAAP fpr ninc inamifacturing plants and 11 retail stores with
gross, rcvcmics in excess of S200M; Additional responsibilities included preparing journal entries, account
analysis, inventor)- review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

•  Managed, trained, and supervisted a siaff accountant responsible for ensuring accttraie,journal entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax returns, bank rcconciliaiion.s, and assignment of special projects.

•  Oversaw all aspects of proprietary software, multi-state pa>Toll sy.stcm for 500 employees. Prepared all federal
and state pa)'roll tax reports, including quarteily and year-end rctum.s-, processing of \V2s, and supervision of
pa)Toll clerk.

•  Interfaced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid-Atlantic area used as depositories.
•  Prcparcd.muiti-siaie;sulcs''u5c tax-returns and acted its point of contact for audits.
•  Pro-activcly conched and consulted plant and store managcincnl on the annual budget development process.
•  Oversaw month-end accruals.

•  Assisted and responded (6 auditors' requests on annual audit.
•  Filed annual franchise and abandoned property rc)X)ris with appropriate states.

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Gontrollcf's initiatives by providing .supervision and oversight to the Accounting function.
Su|wviscd and trained two account.-! payable-clerks on Chan of Accounts. Account.s-Payable, tintcly aiid accurate
processing arid paytttent of vendor's invoices, employee travel reimbursements, and standard accouniing practices.

Arcountant/Pnyroll Supervisor (1994-; 1999)

Accountant(1989-1994)

NORTHERN TELECOM. INC.. Concord. NM 05/1987-03/1989

Associate Rc.siilt.s Aecourilaril (1988-1989)

Accounts Payable (1987-1988)

E IJ U C A T t o N

Bachelor ofSclcncc; Accounting. I'RANKLtN PttlltCE Coi.LJ-Ctl. Concord.,NH



REGAN L. PRIDE

SUMMARY

My experience spans ihe fields of cnjintxiing. conipuicr lechnology. educaiion, and public adminisiration
TTiis unique combinaiK)n brings a wide array oJ knowledge and skills lo the table for your organization I ani a
team player, a paiient traincr. and td^i at interpersonal relations.

REVELANT KNOWLEDGE AND SKILL AREAS

. Confidence in public speakirtg for business and technical applications, and instructional settings
• Strong wTjiing skills and interpersonal communication skills, ability to teach others, and build consensus
• Approachable, wzm and personable sf\-le in teaching classes and interacting with collcBgucs
• Robust education in mathematics, engineering and gencial science topics
• Fluency with entire Microsofl Ofllcc application suite.
• Fluency with AutoCAD compuler>aided drafting suflwari-
• familiarity with ArcView CIS sofiware.
• Familial wih Avantc Enterprise Resource Planning softwore
• Familiar with BMSJ fund accounting and Aviiarasscssing'ta* billing soflware
• Adept.II Macrpmedia'.Adobe Drcamw-eaver MX web site design software

WORK EXPERIENCE

NORTH COUNtRV COUNCIL REGIONAL PLANNING COMISSION. Littleton Nil
TITLE: Plariner, 20I2-20I.1 r 2015-2018
Managed solid waste technical assisunce program fund.cd by USDA Rural Development. Conducted "Full Cost
Accounting" studies of municipal solid waste department operations. Reviewed and updaiedloneraiind plans for
municipal solid waste faciiilies. Organized household haiardous waste collection events Created and delivered
inining ̂ ognms for solid waste operator ccniricalion.. Created pilot programs to reduce & divert food waste
from unofllls in 4 communities.

'20IJ.20|4

innovative STRUCTURAL BUILDING PRODUCTS
TITLE: ProjectManager
Performed a variety of funciions including business plan pteparotion and product development associaied Uith a
slan-up company, m the engineered wood sheathing iudusir)'. I created engineering drawings, built artd tested
proioiypeSr&nd assisted in marketing activities.

2000 - Prescni

ICAN100;ENTERPRISES. Lisbon. KH
TITLE: Owner. Computer Applieatiohs Consulting
Assistance and (raining with business and technical applications, Created customiwd solutions involving
.AutoCAD. MS Work. MS Excel, MS Access software applications. I also pcrftvni web siie HTML and CGI
devclopmcrit. hardwaic setup, upgrudcs. and troubleshooting.
Recent cticnis-'projccis include:
•  New England F.lcciiic Wire Corp - implenicntation of Avante MRP & APS scheduling software

computcnacd WIP labeling system, computer workstation insiallaiions. usci/operotor training.
Littleton. NH Semor Softball League - custom programming and support ofsiatisiical software

•  Louisiana Corporate Credit Union - Web siie.design and mainieiiancc,
Bran'imcr Creek - Web site design for wholesale food disirihutoi.



2006-2013

town of LISBON. NH. Lijbon. NH
TITLE.- Town AdmlnIjlr;nor, CPM
Prepared thnuaj i6«ti budgeis and performed prcjcniationj ai budget hearings and low,, mecing Prepared

fu^ o^nTr '^7 r'""" 'tn-c'"": u. balance dcpanmeni'i budge.. Performed ihe 'financial administration, personnel managemeni. giari. adminijiralion. welfare adminisiration
emeigency maiiagemcnl, and project managerhent. ■ '

1990-2000 & 2004- 2006
NEW,ENGLAND CATHF.TER CORPORATION. Lisbon. NH
(Subsidisr>'ofNew' England Wlrc TecbnologiesI
TITLE:,Engineer, Medical Producla

''"'"r manufacurc ofwire-reinfoiccd medical tubing including-developmcn..-tooling design, and statistical data analysis,pevtloped cus omized sprMdshccis for product design, and manufacturing process control

LnWeiK'^'i rZ parent company as an enginecr/CAD operator front 1990 lo 2000. While in thiscapnciey. I kd personal computer u.se,s groups, installed the firs. I;lbemet network in .he companv cnuineerinc
depanrncnt. and developed computer file management systems and backup routines, '

2002- 2004-

SCI-IOOL AD.MINISTRATU'E UNIT35.. Liidclott, NH
TlTLEt.Disiance I>earning Coordinator
l^is position invoK-cd cpllaboraiion-wi.h teachers and staffto develop interactive educational proprams

dmnul ir-" '"hnoiogy. Programs were distributed between three high school
Tn^in ?i; -h' 7'"'*'='' ^^^"fiE"'""^''. operation and maintenance of videoconferencing endLints and

"""" ' •'»

EIJUCATION/CERI IFICATIONS

NH bureau ol Ediicatjun and Training
CPM Certificate iCcnlfied Pubic Manager)

Univeriiily of.Califomifl-ai Berkctcy.- Engineenng Department
92 semester credits in Mechanical Engineering Major

CONTINUTING EDUCATION
•  Nil Ccrtifli^ I^Jblic Supervisor program
•  Radvision H.232 technician course
•  Six Sigma process control course b>- Hosioii Scientific Corp.
•  E.vinision Theor)' course at Uitivcr$if)-.o'f Massichuseiis. Lowell

PHOKESSIONAI. i CH'IC ASSOCIATIONS

"  CouncilRcgioiiai Planning Commission,ncthlehcm, ML 2007-2012. ScrS ed as chainnan in 2011.
. Crafion-C^s Regibnal'Coqrdinaiing Council (fo, public transit); lJuleion. KM- 2009-^0! ">
• Men,her of NHMMA. NHGfOA. NHl.WAA - 2006--»01 ">

tTi ''I Sc^^;d as chairman from 2002 to 2006.Board of Directors. Lisbon Main Street. Inc.. Lisbon. NM; 2008-2012-
Economic Resiruciurmg Comnijiicc,of Lisbon Main Street. Inc.. 2002-pftsent

• Mcmbet of Granite State {}istancc Lcarning Nciwotk, 2002-2004

REFERENCES

Profe-Mional refcrenccs shall be produced upon request and presented at time ofintervieu.



Gdrald F. MHllken, Jr.

Executive Summaiy

Enthusiastic, dedicatisd and harxiworking professional, ofFering over 20 years of
broad-based experience in Project Direction, policy and procedural development,
training & development, budget administration and business operations within fast-
paced environment.

Experience:

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Program Manager / Olroctor: WeattieHza'tion & Employment Programs

Berlin, NH
to present

Provide leadership and oversight to program's operations, budgets and reporting; -
Coordinate and Integrate programs'actrvlties..
Hire, superviM and manage staff; indyding In-house.and itinerant employees.
Prepare giants and proposals.
Develop, prepare and irhptemeht program budgets, narratives.
Review and reconcile program finanda) reports for reimbursement.
Interact wTth program monitors, outside auditors; Federal agency auditors and others in
review of program acttyities. compliance and nhahdal accountabiilty
Develop new programs and fundng streams as appropriate.

TrFCounty Cpmmunfty Action Piti^ram, Inc.
Craw Chief/ State Certified Ehei^ Auditor Berlin. NH 5-1-05 to 4M • 1 5

Northern Express Eatery, Inc. North Conway. NH
President IGeneral Manager 11-1-2002 to 5^15-2005
Estimated food and beverage costs, requisltionirig and purchasing 'supplies
Assisted subordinates in identifymg and resolving problems.
Confened \^h food, preparation and other personnel to plan menus and related
activities.

Directed hiring and assignment personnel.
Irrvestigated 8r>d resolved food quality and sei%^.complaints.
Maintained all.records ahd product reports.
Executed daily operatiohs of re'^urarit management.

Hatfield-R^nolds Electric an lES, Inc. Company Phoerilx, AZ
Project Manager ^15-2000 to 16^30-2002
Applied knowledge of the construction trade in the daily operation of duties.
Reviewed,project pfoppsals to deteitnihe time frame, funding limitations, procedure
for Accomplishing pi^jecl, staffing requirements' and allotment of available resources
to various phases of projects.



ISO Enterprises, Inc. Lake Havasu City, AZ
President I General Manager 6-1 *1994 to 5-15-2090
Purchase ARTISAN ELECTRIC. INC. and changed the nante.
Contracted to pefform specrfied construction work across the state of Arizona In
accordance with architect's plans, blueprints, codes arKi other specifications.
Estimated costs of materials, labor and use of equipment required to fulfill provisions of
contract and prepared bids.
Conferred with clients to negotiate terms of contract.
Assisted subordinates in Identifying and resolving problems.

Education:

^^Tl Concord
Associates Degree In Electronic TechrK>logy 1935
Theory

Laconia
Electrtcal Systems Installation & Maintenance, 1968
Required for Joumeymen electrical testing.

Additional Training:

8 CUE training course for Grant wnting for non- profits. To enhance my position on the
board of at Children Un^rted, Inc.
Successfully completed"GE's prestigious "SIX SIGMA" managemertt course in 2001
^Be Employed with
Hatfield-Reyholds Electric an lES, he. Company Phoeriix. AZ.
Successfully completed training courses and seminars for.lcad safe work practices
asbestos m^reness.pSHA 3d, CPR,electrical code updates.
Successfully completed Business managerrKnt dosses in AZ
During the 1995-2001.
Successfully cbrhpfeted training and testing to be a NH Slate certified Energy Auditor
.In2p06.

Community:

Board member Chijdren Unlimited, lnc..Conway NH "Non- Profrt"
Board member Berlin RevHalizatipn Committee. Betiiri NH "Non- Profit*^
Past member of the advisory board and co-desigher for the'Myotonic Dystrophy
Foundations first website.
Prwious owner and webmaster for the Myotonic Dystrophy Information website.

License:

Held an Electn'cal Journeyman licenM NH
Held en Eiedrical Contractor License AZ

References: Available upon reque^.



Nathan H. Mills

pROFESSiOf^Ai Summary and Skh t g

Business Professional with experience and oversite of Financial, Quality' Assurance and Operations
cotTiponents for small and mid-size businesses and organizations. Professional, flexible with proven
analytical skills. Demonstrated record of effective problem solving, sound business judgement and
customer ser\'ice.

-  Business Development Planning 6 Budgeting ^ SjaU and Sub-contiaaor Management
G^AP 6.R0HA Customer Service a Client Relations
Asset Management Cenificate. I.WN Si> Sigma Green Bell, USM-2016
Exterislye daily use of Microsoft Excel • Cedificati?, Project Management. USM 2014
Contract Negotiation, Adminjstraiion & Compliance

PROFESSIONAL ExPREIENCE

Inside Production Manager

May 2018 • December 2018

Inside Production Manager responsible:for rrianaging scheduling and close out of dry basement
systems installs,

• Liaison with Ivomeowoer IhroogHout scheduling, install and closeout processes. Liaison with sales tearn and Outside
Production Manager to ensure proposal, inslaliallon and material costs met client expectations, conipany standards
and warranty requirements for dry basement syslcrhs.

Prgject Manager

^fii 2017 — April 20] 8

Projea Manager responsible for managing residential home cpnstrUction process throughout the
planning, scheduling, material procurement and construction processes,

• Liaison lb homeowner throughout enlireconstruction process from contract signing to closirig. Weekly telcphof>e
update and change oroer estimate and management. Haimain master sch^ule on Builder Trend project managenwn:
software, Schedule sub-contractors, inspect work to project wc., issue rework and approve invoices for paymcni.
Job coK oversite, rhaterials ordering and inventory management.

Director, Housing and Energy Services September 2009 - November 2016

Business, Fiscal, Operational and Corfipliance,responsibility for federally funded programs that provide
home energy and emergency assistance, HQS home repair, and home efficiency and insulation
upgrades to income eligible households in Curn.berland and York County, Maine.

• Oversoc.aii sub-grantee contractual responsiOilities of client intake, certilication ano bcnern oeiermination, program
integrity and. compliance for Federal DHHS LiHEAP Grant, providing home heating benefits to approximatcty 3,500
low-ifKomc Cumberland County households annually.

• C^'cisce all aspects of Program and Project Mandgerrient including; client eligibility ano program compliance of NMiS
Licensed Agency Lending for HUD, MSHA, Maine DOCD and Cumbeiland County' Commiiniiy Development. Program
fundjrig'suppoined home repair, home renovatroi^ and enercy-efficiencV upgrades of very ibw.io moderate income
households In Cumberland and York County-.

• Contract, Opeiat'onai and Fiscal o-.-ersighi of Federal DOf. and DHHS lev; Income Weatlieibation, Central Heat
Improvement and Efficiency Mame Energy Conservation Piogranis.



Business Manager
2006- 2009

Managed all business activity for national cataloger providing Office of the Registrar course cataloq
and other legally binding documents to colleges and universities in the United States and Canada

• Accounu Payabfe, Accounts ReceK-able, General Ledger, Payroll, Financial and Tax Reponing.

• Cash Fiovr and iJrre o' Credit management.

Accounting Associate
2004 - 2006

Responsible for business office functions of AP/AR and Payroll for non-profit agency. In this position I
was accounting liaison for a variety of programs among others, and was responsible for accurate
payroll proc^sing for departments that operated 24/7/365. I streamlined-payroll process and systems
that optimized digital assets fpr workflow and Information retrieval for tax and audit purposes.^

Retail Catalog and Advertising Photographer j 993 .

Managing studio photographer for New Errgland's first.digifal commercial photography studio
responsib e for project management, process workflow, and capacity and demand management.
OyerMw the photography and pre-press production for first digitally produced LLBEAN retail catalog.

Retail Catalog and Advertising Photographer 1907 . jggg

Produc^ advertising and retail catalog photography for local and regional companies servihq a
national market including; U Bean, Cote Haan, Eastern Mountain Sports, Brookstone and others.

Education

Bachelor of Arts, Geography
UnhVfSity of Miiinf, Farmington, 19S3

Accounting, Project Management and Human Resources
Unn^rsit)'of Southern ftame, oopoing

Community

BIddeford School Committee, Vice Chairman

. Co-Chairmen, Curriculum Comminee; Finance Commiiiee; Ptirsormet Commiitcc; Chid Negotiaior (Colieciive
Seigaming) Elected 10 consecuitve 7. yeai terns in 7006 and ?0f)8. Sewed du.ing period that school svstem
undenook a.S30 million dollar renovation of Biddc/oro High School. inai scr.001 system

Central America Volunteer work
Heredia, Costa Rica S San Bcmadino Guatemala

'  ̂ Guaiemela in ZOOS iNitr. a volunteer team to build a timocr frame v-ccational ccniei a.ndiMuduon system,

^iVcV«v>.-i>ir ,H'a/J,fO.'c ugfln et^oimFt
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

To the Board of Directors of pkoe^ssioxal

Tri-County Community,Action Prograrri, inc; and Affiliate '.CERnFiED PUBLiCACOdUNTANTs
Berlin, New Hampshire woiteboho ••NORTiiCOW-

Doo-•.concord:

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

Report onthe Financial Statements
We have audited the:accpmpanyirig.consolidated financial statements-of Tfi-Cbunty Community
Action Program., inc. and-Affiliate-(New Hampshire nonprofit organizations)^ .which comprise the^
consolidated statements: of-financial .position as of June -30, 2019 and 2018, the Telated
consolidated statements of. cash flows and'fMrictional expenses for the. years then ended, the^
related consolidated statement; of activities for the year ended June 30, 201.9 and the related
notes'to the consolidated flhancial statements.

Mahagenieht's Respoh for-the Financial Statements
Management is respo.nsi.ble for the preparation and fair presentatiori of" these, consolidated
financial statements in accocdance: with accounting principles generally accepted In the United'
States of America; this includes the design, Irhplementation, and malntenance/of internafcontrol
relevant to the preparalibri ,and fair'presentation of consolidated financial statements fhat are:
free:fforh material misstatemerit, whether due'to fraud-o,r error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibili^-isito express an opihioh:oh these-consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with, auditing standards generally accepted in,
the .Uhlted States lof .America and the standards applicable to. financiar audits; ;cohtained in
GoyernmenlAu0ogStandards, issued by the Cdmp.troHer General ;of.the United States. Those
standards- require 'that we plan 'and ;perf6rm .the audit to Obtain' reasonable assurance 'about;
whether the consolidated fiiiancial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence.'about the amouhtS; and
disclosures in the cpnspljdated financi.aj, statements. The. procedures selected depend .oh the
auditprs" judgement, ih.cludirig the, assessnheht; of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial' statements, whether due^ to "fraud or error: In making those, risk
assessments, the auditor cohsiders internal .control relevant to the entjty.'s; preparation.and fair
presentation of the :consolidated financial statements jn- order tO; design audit procedures that
;are appropriate; in the circumstances, but not for the purpose Of expressing ah opinion- on the
effectiveness ofWe enti^'s internal control. AccofdingTy, we express; no such opinion. .An a.udi.t
also includes ;evaluatihg the appropriateness of accounting pplicles used ;anci the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as- well as
evaluating the oyerall presentation of the consolidated financial statements;,

We believe: that the audit/evidence we have obtained is sufflcientand appropriate to.prpvide:a
basis for Our audit .ppiriipn,



Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial ,position of Tri-Counly Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30, 201,9, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited Th-Gpunty .Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's 2018
consolidated financial, statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit'opinion on tho.se
consolidated financial statements in our report dated October 19, 2018. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,'
2018, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been .derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opihioh dri the consolidated financial
statenients as a whole. The accortipanying schedule of expenditures pf federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Oode of .Federal Regulations:{6fR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principle's, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of' additional analysjs and is not a required part of -the" consolidated financial
statements, Such information isvthe responsibility of management and was derived from arid
relates difectly'to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The infoimatipn has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the cpnspiidated financial statements -and certain additional procedures. Including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
staterrients themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the: United States of America. In our opinion, the Information Is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relatidn'to the consolidated financial statements as a whoje.

Other Reporting Required by. Government Auditing Standards
In .accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we haye also issued pur report dated
October 21, ,20.19, on our consideration of Tri-Cpunty dommunity Action Program. Inc.'s internal
control over financial,reporting and on our tests of its'cdmpliance with certain provisions pf laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of that, report is; to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the,: results Of that testing, and riot to provide an opinion op the effectiveness of Tri-County
Comniuriity Action Program, Inc.'s internal control o.yer financial reportin'g or on' cdmpliarice.
That report is, an integral part.of an audit performed in accordance with Government-Auditing
Standards in considering Tfi-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal controi over
financial reporting and cpmpliance,

October.21, 2019

North.Gonway, New Hampshire



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable

Property held.for sale
Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PRpPERTY

•  Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHERASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

2019

$  1;400.750
-583.963

1.274,083
47.000

231.161

85.886
34.037

3:656.880

12.086.152
(5;178,535)

6;907,6"17

418.936

2018

1.329.038
380,902

1.156,657

212.207

87.569
25.640

3.1921013

12.812.689
(5,203:324)

7,609:365

325.863

$ 10.983.433- $ 11.1271241

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Demand note payable
Current portion of long, term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances
Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt, net of current portiori.
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion

total liabilities

NET ASSEtS
Without doripr restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL Liabilities and net ASSEfs

148.449
4.870

221.571

204,079
210.'952
89,524
197;i57
598.195

1,674i797

5,227,835
3,355

6.905,987

3.399.192
678,254

4.077.446

516,022

142.733

4.445
237;276'

203:121
187,508
131,888

191,(569
387.168

2,001.230,

5.373,937
8.226'

7.383,393

2,926.057

817:791

3.743,848:

$ 10.983,433 S 11.127;241

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI.CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILtATE

CONSOLIDATEDiSTATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE'SO, 2019
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

With Donor

RosWctloos

Without Donor

Restrictions

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant and contracts' $  14.074,(X)8
Program funding 1,167,509

Utility programs 1.287;i03
Irv4(iiid contributions 477.167

Contributions 230.986.
Fur>draising 39,303
Rental'trKome 625,046
Interest Income 843

(Loss) gain on disposal of property (32,692)
Loss on write down of property held for sale (255,492)

Other.revenue 196,364

Total revenues and other support 17,809,745

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 540,643

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restridloris 18.350:388

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Services::
Agency Fund 950,639
Head Start' 2,451.296
Guardianship' 767.241
Transportatten 916.089
Vbluhteer 118.408
Workforce Development 354.263
Alcohol and Other Drugs -

jCarroH County Dental 747.474
Support Center. •391.650
Homeless 714.066
Energy and Community Development 7.788.660
Elder 1.462.613
Hpusirig Services 172.852

Total pfograrh ̂ rvices 16.835.151

Supporting Activities:
General 'and administrative 1.032.207

Fuhdralsing 0.895

Total supporlitig acUvilies 1.042.102

Total functional expenses 17.877.253

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 473,135

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2.926.057

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR S  3,399.192

401,106

401,106

(540,643)

(139,537)

(139i537)

817.791

1.032.207

9.895

1.042.102

17.877.253

333.,598

3.743,848

2019 •2018

Total Total

$  14.475.114 % 14.309.088
1.167.509 1.259,037
1:2B7,103' 1,079.361
477.167 351,187
'230,966: 395,225
39.303' 59,536

625.046 679.112

643 348

(32.892) 48,487
(255,492) -

196.364 91.9?9

18.210,851 18.263.317

18,210.851 18,263.317

950.639 922,701
2.451.296 2.461,916
767.24,1 ' 780:009
916.069 879,729
118.408 122,941
354,263 394,252

- 444,561
747,474 642,637
331,650 276,172
714.066 577,783

7,788,560 7.480.943

1,462,613 1,142,818
172:652 176:511

16.835.151 16.302.993

1,102.448

6.023

1.110.471

17.413,464

849:853

2.893,995

678.254 $ 4,077,446 $ 3.743.848

Soo Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI.CQUNTY CQMMUNiTY ACTION PROGRAM. INC- AND AFFtI tATF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Ixss (gain) on disposal of property
Loss on write down of property held for sale

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable

Pledgers receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses
Restncted cash

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences

Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabijities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

'CASH;FLOWS.FROM INVESflNG ACTIVITIES
Pror^eds fidrn disposal of property
Purchases of property and equipment

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

C>^H FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net repayment on demand rrote payable
'Repa:^erit of .lorig-te[iTh debt
Repayment of capital lease obligations

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES.

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQIJIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Property donated

152.078

2019 2018

$  333.598 S  849,853

447.669 463,483
32.892 (48.487)

255,492
-

(117:426) 170,337
(16,954) (6.403)

1,683 (21,928)
(8.397) 19.705

(296,134) 235.922

(15.705) (281.171)
.  958 (39.424)
23,444 (9.374)

(42,364) 24,261
6,088 (6.479)

211,027 (258.143)

813.871 1.092.152

14,283 278.972

(95.588) (141.335)

(81.305) 137.637

(516,022) (90.412)
(140.386) (311.983)

(4.446) (4.056)

(660.854f (406.451)

71.712 823:336

1,329,038 505.700

$  1,^,750 $  1,329,638.

182,514

18.830

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRl^OUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAf^ |fjr

CONSOLIOATEb STATEMENT OF FUNCTtONA!
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE.3Q 70

General &
Aoencv Fund Head J Total Administrative Fiindralsino tplai

Direct Expenses

Pa/roll $' T99.241 5  i.3}66' $ 5.462,305 i  596.457 S  • $ 6.058.762

Payroll taxes and tMnetits 49:259 -3' . •1.413,250 163.274 - 1:576.524

Assistance to.diencs •22.359 5.786.314. . - 5.786.314

Corisumablesuppiies 3.408 ^•578. ■846,305 11.436 - 657.741
Space costs and rentals 7;828 1  . 523.719 66.566 • 590.287
Depreciation expense. 169,653 ^9. 447.669. 3,157 - 450,826
In-kind expended • •477,167 .  - - 477,167
Consultants and contractors .20.400 222:318 16.029 - •238.347
Utilities 168.297 481 378.636 5.708, - '384.344
Travel end meetings '11.024 ^2 297:607- 20:789 - 318.396
Other direct program .costs 2.535 224 157,696. 9.225 9.695 176.816
Fiscal and admlnistrallve 16.817 731 103,•147 94.740 - 197;887
Building and grounds maintenance .93.988 594 179.346 30 - • 179.376
interest expense 117.585 152:965 953,• - 153.918
Vetticle expense 2.747 199.965' - - 199.965
Insurance 56.671 316 89,016 -30.772 • 119.788
fitaintenance of.equipment and rental 562 •331 8ii909' 12.647' - 96.556
Fixed faes- 8,265 13.817 422' - 14.239

Tofal O/rect Expenses M0.639 2,4^2 16,835,-151 V.032.207 9.695 17.877.253

Indirect Expenses
Indirect costs 96.348 2'. 1,032.207 (1.032.207) - •

Total Dir^t i Indirect expenses S  '1;046,987 S  2.6ic2 $ 17:867,358 S $  9.895 $ 17,877,253

See Notes to Consolidated FInancI
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM iwr

CONSOUDATEO'STATEMENTOF FUNCTIONAL E>

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 20'1^

Agency Fund Head S>»r

DIract Expenses

Payroil S  99.755 S 1.250.607
Payroll taxes and t>eneflts 23.319 339,0 .
Assistance to clients 74.171

Consumable suppiies .1.723 240.8-2
Space costs and rentals 21.013 164.4: .
Oeprectation expense 324.623

In-kind expended 12.500 2(36.0! .
Cqnsullants and contractors 15.615 28.9!
Utilities 135.551 32.5-62

50.2:,5
9.7s4
28.3^

Travel end rrwetirigs i.093
Other direct program cosis 44.933

Fiscal and administrative 243

Building and grounds maintenance 62.622 62.5^
interesl expense li27.777 3" .
Vehicle expense 4.282 .f

Insurance' 65.654 14.0152
52.1: .Maintehance of equipment and rental -

Fixed fees - (

Total OInct'Bxptnsis

Indirect Expenses

Indirect costs

Capltaflzed Expenses

Less ca^lallzatioh of assets

Total Dinct & /rrd/recf expenses

86;950

(92.373)

24a.0{

Total

5.214;049

1,260.319

5.536:546

949.650

578,542

48i463
351.188

315.642

326.659

278.787

192.849

94.549

198.381

183.401

164,961

154.315

127:333

4;312

1.015.074 2.481.9*,, .16.395.366

1.102.448

(92:373)

General &

670:592

,164.414

11.219

72.385

15.662

3.589

9.470

28.234

106.359

180

1.241

5.085

14.018

Fundralalna

1,102,448

11,102.448)

6.023

8.023

Total

5.884.641

1.424.733

S.S36;546

961.069

650.927

463.483

■351.188
331.504
^.248
288;257
229.106
200.908
-196.561
'184.642
164.961
159.400
141.351

4:312

17.505.837

(92.373)

^  S 2.730.0(„ j , 8.023 S 17,413.464

See Notes to Consolidated FInarKlal t

7



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The' consolidated fihancia! statements include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc; and its affiliate, Cornerstone. Housing North. Inc.
The two prganizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Prpgrarti, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-Courity Community Action Program. Inc. (the
Organization) 1s a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide,
variety cf community .service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
coritracts from yarious federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) was incorporated under the
laws of the State of New^ Hampshire for the acquisition, construction and operation
of cpmmunity-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-Cpunty CAP Administration' provides- central program mariagehient
Support and oversight to the Organization's' many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR.services, legal and audit services, IT support,
management support; financial support and central policy deveiopmerit.

Tri-County GAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc., Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the gpard to.
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities incjude the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well, as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. Alf children receive health and development screenings.,
riutritious meals, oral health and mentaj health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial.stability..



Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator.. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri County Community Action Head Start serves 217 children in Carroll,
Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-based classrooms

and 1 home-ba'sed option.

Guardianship

The Organization's'Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the .elderly suffering from'Alzheimer's, dementia, arid multiple medical
issues) who need a-guardian and who have no fanriily member or friend
willing. able.,pr suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves 414-
individuals. AdditiOhal services include, conseryajorship, representative
payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management services end
private probate accounting "services.

Transportation

The -Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-dopr service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service araa, and
special trips for the elderly -to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's, fleet.of 17
wheelchair laccessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to'the general public.

Voluhteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 394 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 287
actively served during the last reporting period.. These yolunteem share
their skills, life experiences, arid time with over 60 local riori^pfofit and
public, agencies, throughout, Coos County that depend On volunteer
assistance to rrieet the needs of thejr constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 46,764: hours yearly.

Workforce Development

The Organization, is assisting transitional and displaced wOfkers. es they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to,
gain the.:skills-required for better jobs.



The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire",s Unified State
Plan for Woilcforce Development, in line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide' temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the.areas of employment
skills, computer skills, ,and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Afcohol & Other Drugs (AOD)

Services provided through the AOD program included assisting the
alcoholic/addicted person op the road to recovery, through three phases:
Crisis Intervention, Sobriety Maintenance, and Assessment and Referral to
appropriate treatment facilities.

The Residential Treatment Programs (Friendship House) provided
chemically dependent individuals with the fundamental tools of recovery,
including educational classes, group and individual counseling, work- and
recreational therapy, and .attendance at inmouse and community-based
alcoholics anonymous: and narcotics anonymous meetings. The AOD
prograrn also offered assistance with its impaired driver prograhris.

Effective October 1, 2017, the Organization is no longer responsible for the
Alcohol & Other Drugs (AOD) program. The grants for the program were
transferred to North Country Health Consortium (NCHC)i as.they took-over the
pfogram. The Friendship. House was sold to Affordable, Housing .Educatiph and
Development (AHEAD).

Carroll County Dental

The Tamworth Dental Center (the Center), offers high quality oral health
cafe to children witri NH lyiedicaid coverage. The Organization also serves
uninsured arid underinsured children and adults using a sliding fee scale
that offers income-based discounts for care, The Center accepts most
common dental insurances for those who have commercial dental
insurance coverage. A school-based project of the Dental Center, School
Smiles, offers oral health education, screening, treatment and refe'rrals'fbf
treatment to over 1,000 children in 9 schools in the vicinity of the COntef.

Support Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic, and sexual violence and
stalking iri Northern Ofaflon Co'Jrity. Support Center services afe^
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach;; violence prevention programs for studerits;
inforhiation, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.
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Homeless

Homeless :services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary-shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing, rehabilitation services to
help preserve, older housing stock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or-a discount on the. client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access, to energy assistance programs^ and
other emergency services. The offices provide Information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the corhmunify;

LoW'Incorne Wisatherizatioh

The NH weatherization prpgrafn helps low-ihcorne families,, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety,- and comfort; and improve the quality-of living
while improving housing stock m communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbpri ,lov/ering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides: senior meals; in 15 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition educatiori and related
programming; The .Cops County ServiceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, longrteirh care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is subj.ect to a Project Rental Assistance
Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD), and a. significant portion of their rental income, is
received from HUD.

The Organization includes :a 12'-unit apartment complex in Berlin, N'evv
Hampshire, for the elderly; This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges,
and operating methods.
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The Organization has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Oiffice of Managerhent and Budget Uniform
Guidance. Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal RegOlatiohs (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Adrninistrative Requirements, Qosi Principle's and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program.

Method of accounting

The consolidated firiancial statements of Tri-Gounty Community Action Prograrh,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance, with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Americai as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASG). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when Incurred without regard to the date, of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the- Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting pririciples (US> GAAP), which require the
Organization to report .information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets wlthout.donor restriciions Include net assets that.are not subject
to any donor-Imposed restrictions and may be, expended for any purpose In
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the .Organization's management, and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictidhs include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of tirne, Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the,funds,be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has.net assets with .dbrior restrictions of $678,254 and $817,791
at June 30,.2019 and 2018, respectively. See Note 13.

-Contributibris

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net

assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature, of, any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that 1s: restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in "the "reporting; period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are.
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction, is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restriciions; and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable'are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables: are. amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made .under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable-balance represents amounts due from patients at Caffbir County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion .using the,
direct write off method; this is not cohsidered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United Stale because the effects of the direct write
method approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects-accounts
to be written off ;after analyzing pasl payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, arid collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not. charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $'5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is .provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the relaiedrassets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation exjDehse for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other simijar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to adrriinistratiye assets is,,included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that dp not materially prolong the useful lives of assets, are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8:5 years
Furniture and equipment . 5 to 15, years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Comers.tone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an anhual basis by the
DPpartnient of ;Housing and Urban Development. Rental, increases are prohibited
without such, approval. The clients are' charged rent equal to '30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing arid Urb.an Deyelopment.
Rent subsidies are, received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the" allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.
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Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue iii the perip.d in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $1:97,157 and $191,069 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018.. respectively,

Nonprofit tax status

The, Organization is a not-for-profit Section 501(c)(3) organization, in acajrdance
with, the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is-not
a private foundation under the .Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a,charitable
.contribution deduction for individual donors. The- Organization files information
returns in the United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax), 'is subject to examination by the IRS,
generally fdr three years after it is filed. The Organization is. no longer subject to
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2015,

The Organization follows FASB.ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty Jn Jncorne Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty- in Income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and me'asurehieht attribute for-financial statement recognition
and: measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
The Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions,
therefo.re;,a liability for income taxes associated with.Uncertain tax positions has riot
been recognized.

Due to changes, in the. tax law in the 2017 Tax Cuts arid Jobs Act.^theprganizatipn
is: subject to, file an Unrelated Business Income. Tax Retum for unalldwed expenses
for the yearended June 30, 2019. These expenses fall under the qualified taxable
fringe benefits. The total tax due for the year ended'June 30, 2019 is approximately
$8,96.0.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from incohie taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue .Servicei has
deteitnined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning :of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan

The Orgariization rnaintains; a tax-sheltered annuity plan under thei provisions^ of
Section 403(6) of the. Intefrial Revenue Code: All ernployees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning oh the date they^are erriplpyed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance, y/ith limits;
allowed in the Intemal Revenue Code. Employer contributibhs. are at the
Organization's-annual discretion. In January.2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, ,:2pi9 and 20,i'8, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements..
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Donated services and goods

Gonlributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial assets or
that require- specialized skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fa|r values in the period received.

Contributed nonca'sh assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If

donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net. assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such .stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded -as net assets without donor

restrictions.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
. value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions- of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as aetassets'with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated: assets rnust be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are, placed in
service .as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets with
donorTestrictions'to net assets without donor restrictions at tha't time.

■Promises to Give
Conditionalpromises to give are not recognized in the financial staternents until the:
conditions are substantially met; Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be, collected within one year are recorded at the. net realizable value.
UncoridltipnaJ promises to, give'that are. expected to be collected in more than one
year- are- recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value: Of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are cornputed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the prprnises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations ,to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to Use after the due date,. Promises that remain uncplleeted more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the do.nOrs indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires; net assets, with donor
restrictions are: reclassified to net assets without.donor restrictions.

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, there, were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $231,161 and $212,207,
respectively. This amount was included in grants: and contracts oh the
Consolidated Statement of Activities.
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Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures: of cohtingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported arhounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could, differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures, of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose- fair values of its-
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's firiancial
instruments, which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, appfoxifriate fair value: because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functipha) basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated arriong the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various

programs .and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based Upon
the classification of each ernplpyee and allocated to the various program
based upon'the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to. a leave pool and is allocated to each program as a,
percentage oftotal salaries.,

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These, expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance" and unemployment compensation. The pool is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific:
assets used by the program and is reported as deprecjatiph expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.
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Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of ,the buildings; and insurance for furniture arid equipment-is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

The remaihihu shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of progratp expenses.
The expenses include items Such as administrative salaries^ general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be-specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other Indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1. 2018, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12.50%. Per the
agreement with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the
Oi^anization'sYinal rate for the year ended June 30, 2018 was 11,45%. The actual
rate for the year ended June 30, .2019 was approximately 10.44%, vyhich 1?
allowable because it is jess than the provisional rate.

Advertising pblicv

The Organization uses advertising to inform the- comrriuriity about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising, is expensed as iricurfed. The total
cost of advertising for,the years ended June 30, 2019 and 201.8 was $11,698 and
$18,616, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During'the year ended June 3.0, 20i;9, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of thO' FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
"Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs " The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of :debt issuance costS; and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt, issuance costs is not effected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated staternents of functibnal expenses for both 2019 and 2018.

New Accounting Pronbuhcement
On August 18, 2016; FASB issued ASU 2016-14i Not-fof-Profit Entities {Topic 958)
- Presentation of Financial' Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities.. The update
addresses the .Gomple)!:ity and understandability of net asset classification,
deficiencies in irifortnation about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack
of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and .investment
return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these statements
accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods presented.
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NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents, the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2019
and 2018:

2019 2018

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 1,400.750 $ 1,329,038
Accounts receivable 1,274,083 1,156,657
Pledges receivable 231.161 212.207

Totalfinancial assets 2.905.994 2.697:902

Less amounts not available to be

used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 678,254 817,791
Less net assets with iime restrictions to be,
met in less than a year (348.6311 (540.6431

Arnounts not available within one year 329.623 277.T48

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next t\velye months S 2.576.371 S 2.420.754

It is the Organization!s goal, to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses vyhich approximates $2,786,000 and $2,729,000 respectively,
at June, 30, 2019 and 2018.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash ahd cash equivalents consist of oash on hand, funds on deposit:with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the. year, the Organization's Cash- balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. At June 30. 2019 arid 2018, the
balences in interest and; npn-interest-bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up
to $250,000. At June 30, 2019 and .2018, there .\yas approximately $1.750.000 .arid
$1,2()0,000, of deposits .held in excess of the FDIC lirnit, respectively. Management
believes the Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and
cash equivalents and considers this a normal business risk.

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is- required to maintain a deposit account with a bank, as part of
the loan .security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It is required to mainta[n a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the US Department of
Agriculture.
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Amounts withdrawn to -make payments of debt service must be replenished vyith
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance is achieved. The
balance as of .June 30. -2019 and 2018 was. :$20,010 and $19,980, respectively.
The Organization has rn.ade all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the

Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization Is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a .bond issue; (see bond payable in, Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equarto 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2019 and 2018 was $176,298 and $176,570, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash on the Statements pf Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account; on behalf p.f clients who participate in
the. Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the finarteial
staternents as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June'30, 2019 and 2018 was $582,11.6 and $.378,6.05, respectively,
these amounts are included in other liabilities on the Staternents pf Financial
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2019 and 2018
was $582,116 and $378,605, respectively, and is included in ;the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

,At June 30, 2019, the Qrganization had $45,198 in restricted cash relating to the
property that is held for sale^ at year end. Upon the sale of the property, jt will be
donated to another,non-profit.Organization.

/

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restri.cted: for
certaih uses' in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2019 and 2018 vyas $179,277 and $131,610, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2019, and 2018, inventory included weatherization rhaterials which had; been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
Inventoiy is taken annually. Cp.st is determined, using the firstrin, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2019-and 2018, consists of weatherization materials
totaling $85,886 and $87,569, respectively.
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During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Organization adopted the provisions of
the FASB Accounting Standard Update (ASU) 2015-11, Inventory, {Topic 330):
Sirhplifying the Measurement of Inventory,, which simplifies the subsequent
measurement of inventory by requiring inventory to be measured at the lower of
cost or net realizable value. Net realizable- value is the estimated selling price of
inventory in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of
completion, disposal, and transportation. The Organization has evaluated ASU
2015-11 and has determined that there is no material impact to the financial
statements.

NOTE S. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

For the years ending June ,30. 2019 and 2018, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of T60 hours. At June 30, 2019 and
20.1.8, the .Organization had accrued a liability for future annualleave time that its
employees had earned and vested in the amount of $204,079 and $203,121,
respectively.

NOTE 6. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2019:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value.

Building $ 9,709,749 $-3,469,618 $6,240,131
Equipment 1,950.063 1,708,917 241.146
Consthjction

inprogress 2i500 - 2i500
Land 423.840 : 423.840

^12:086.152 $5.178.535 $ 6.907.617

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2018;

Capitalized Accurfiulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building $10,003,944 $ 3.448i411 6,555;533
Equipment 2,384,905 1,754,913 629,992-
Land 423.840 " 423.840

$12.812.689 S 5.203:324 $ 7.609.365

The Organization has use of computers- and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Orgariizatidn's
properly and equipment totals.
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Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$447,669 and $463,483, respectively.

The Organization has property held for sale at June 30, 2019 amounting to
$47,000, which is classified as a current asset in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position. The total loss on the write down to market value of
this property was $255,492.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

"The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 consisted of
the follovying:

2019 2018

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business: assets. Final
installment'due January 2027. .$ 124,867 $. 138,225

Note payable with a bank requiring 120. monthly
.installments of $3,033, including interest at 4.69%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2021. 328,896 349,131

Note payable, with a bank requiring 6.0 monthly
installrnents of $459, including interest at 5% per
arinUni. This note, was an unsecured line of credit

that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016. Final installment due April
2021, 9.618 14.500

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $312, including; Interest at
5.49'% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle.. Final installrnent due August ̂O^l. 7.642 10,874

Note, payable to a financing corripany requiring 72
monthly installments of $313, including interest at,
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due July 2021.. 7,385 10,637

Note payable to a fiiiancing company requiring 60
monthly Installments of $143, including 'interest at
5.99% per annurri. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due November 2020,. 2,331 3,863
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Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly iristallmehts of $248, including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due February 2023.' 9,739 12,041

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. Final balloon payment is due in
March 2023. 395,429 403,244

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost, of funds multiplied by
67% with an, indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties,. Final installment due August 2040. 2,634,595 2,719,260

Gomerstohe Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the Department of Housing arid Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
intere.st or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 yearS; or in August 2047. 1,617,600 1,617.600

Cornerstone Housing; North, Inc. mortgage payable
due: to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The .mortgage is not subject to interest, or principal
amortization.. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final payment due ih Acigust 2047. 250.000, 250.000

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs
5;388.162
.  (11.8181

5,529,375

(12.7051

TotaMong term debt
Less current portiondue within one year

5:376,284
Y148.4491

5,516,670
(142.7331

$.5.'373.937
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The seheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30. 2019 were as fdllbwis:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2020 $ 148,449
2021 437,624

2022 123,156
2023 485,481
2024 118,295

Thereafter 4.075.097

£ 5.388.102

As described at Note 3. the Organization Is required to maintain a reserve-account
with a bank for the firet two notes payable listed above.

NOTE S. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital leases, expiring in November 2020 and March
2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company leased an
additiorial .copier under the terms of a capital lease, expiring in May ,2021. The
.assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recp.rded at the lower of the
present v'alue of the 'minimum- lease payments or the^ fair value of the assets. The
.assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.

The Obligations included in capital leases-at June 30, 2019 and 2018, consisted of
the.follpwiog:

2019 2018

Lease payable to: a financing company with
monthly installments; of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is secured
by the phone systern and will mature In Noverriber
2020. $ 3,291 $ 5,362

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.'84i% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in March
2021. 2,261 3,467
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Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of S122 for principal ;and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and vyill mature In May 2021. 2.673 3.842

8,225 12,671
Less current portion (4.870) (4.445)

$  '^-355 $ 8.226

The scheduled maturities, of capital lease obligations-as of Juhd 30, 2019 were as
-follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2020 $ 4,870
2021 3.355-

NOTES. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit wjth its primary financial
institution which is. secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit: agfeemeht.
Borrowings under:the: line bear interest at 5.00% per annum, and totaled $316,000
at June 30, 2018.There was no balance outstanding at June 30, 201:9'. The line is
subject:to renewal each January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in'2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. The Organization was riot
required to: niake payiinents of interest or principal prior to maturity. At June 30,
2018, .the outstaridirig debt totaled $200,022, which included accrued interest of
$21,434. The unsecured revolving line of credit was paid off in full during the year
ended June 30, ,2019.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has entered into riumefous lease commitrnerits for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various .starting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has:
several facilities which are leased on a, month to month basis. For .the years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018, the annual rent expense for leased, facilities totaled
$1.81,127 and $165,227, respectively.

24



Future minimum .lease payments under non-cancelable operating lease's having
Initial terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2019, are as follows;

Years ending
June 30 Amount

■2020 $ 147,778
■2021 65,003
2022 3.301

$ 216.082

NOTE i 1. IN-KIND CONTRiBUTIONS
The Organization' records the, value of in-kind contributions according to, the
accounting policy described in Note 1. the Head Start, transportation and elder
prograrns rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage "for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of belovv
rnarket rent for sprne of the facilities utilized by the. Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental
payment ahd'the.hiarket rate for the property based upon a receht appraisaL.

Many other individuals have donated-significant amounts of'time to the activities .of
the Organizatiori. The financiaj statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for rnaking a ^reasonable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
Tri-Cdunty Comhiunity Action Piegrarn, Inc. receives a majority of its support, from
federal and state goverrirrients. For the years ended June 30, 20.19 and .2018,
approximately $13,951,828 (77%) and $13,773,803 (75%). respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If e
significant reduction in the level' of support were to occur, it would have a significant
effect on the.Organization's programs and activities.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its Support, from: the
U.S. Department of Housing, and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2019 and 2018, approximately 69% of the Organizations total revenue was
derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. In the
absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of Corhersfpne
Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the,U.S., Department
of Housing and Urban Development.
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The majority of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for-which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates in a reguiated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies-,, including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by ah
act of Congress or an administrative change rnandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets viiith donor restrictions are available for the. following specific program
services as of June 30, 2019 arid 20.18;

2019 2018

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 231,161 ,$ 212,207
10 Bricks Shelter Funds 142,190' 142,190
FAR 117,470 136,614
Re'strictedBuildings: 87,541 190,049
Support Center 25,939
Weatherizatiori 25,000
Loans - HSGP 19,907 21,454
FAP/EAP 11,290 23,249
RSVP Program Funds 7,056 5,021
Senior Meals 5,130
Head Start 3,999 4,172
Donations to. Maple Fund 1,571 1,586
Homeless Programs - 27,680
USDA - 10,332
Loans - HHARLF - 6,967
IDN Capacity Fund r 32', 194
-Community Needs.Assessment: ^ 4.076

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 678.254 £ 817.791

NOTE 14. COIVIIVIITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants:. Under the
terms of the grants the Orgariizatibn is required to comply with yaripus stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the. Organizatidri could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.
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Ehvironmehta! Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the. Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1,.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West'Wing Buildings which
were: formerly used as a research and development facility for the. Berlin Mills
Corhpany.

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building coritained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012,, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the-
Department) rioted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

)n addition, the Department noted, that the contaminants; related to the. West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration' occurs and contaminants are.

released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action including containment and remediation.

Loss Continaehcies
During the year ended June 30,, 2018, legal actions were brought against the
Organization. Due to the .uncertainty of the, outcome, of suCh cases as of June ,30,
2019, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability, no amount
has been accrued by th'e Organization at this time.

NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RSERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS

Under Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD„ the
Organization Is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and 'other ;project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits oT$129,407 and $106,548 were held in a segregated account at
June 30, 2019 and 2018; respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are: not
available for opefating'purpbses.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s use ofthe residual receipts account is contingent
Upon HUD's prior written approval. Residual receipts of $46,514 and $21,326 were
held in a segregated account for the .years ended June 30, 2019 'and 2018,
respectively.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
d[rect that the ampunts.in excess pf certain limits in the residual receipts: account be
(aiused to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.
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In accordance with the policy noted above, subsequent to year end the
Organization was required to remit funds to HUD totaling $31,412. In addition to the
funds remitted, HUD approved the Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual receipfs account for equipment.

NOTE 16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recoghized subsequent events are .events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent evehtsi through October 21,
2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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TRU:dLI^ CO»n««^A^H PROGRAM IMT

SCHEOin^ OP eXPEMMTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR EWOFDJUWE 3Q: WH

FEDERAL CRAHTOR/PROCRAM TTTtE

FEDERAL

CFDA '
NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

CRANTOR-S NAME

CRANTOR-S

IDENTIFYING FEDERAL

U.S. DeoAftmem ef HMttn inrt ScrwicM

Head Sian

Head Stan
93.600

93.600
01CH1000CF04-00

01CH10000-05<X>

TOTAL

6  '1,424.301
10afl?K9

2.512 MO

ijwjtyniTw Home Energy Assistance
Low;lncdme Home Energy Assignee -
Lo<ir-income Home Energy As^slanea
Low4ncome Home Energy Asstsianca

93.568
93.566

93.566

93.566

State of New Hampshire ̂ ce.of Energy and Ranmng
State of New Hampshim O!^ of Energy and nanning
State of New HantpsiWe Office of Ener^ and nwvttog
' Slate of New HanpsNn Office of En^ and Ptan^

G-teSINHLlEA

.G-t9BtNHLIEA
G-ieBlNHLIEA 1056420

G-1961NHLIEA1056420

TOTAL

93.918

5.620.283

305,388
241 539

6.461 128

AGING CLUSTER

Special Rrogratm tor the Aging r Title m. Part 6 - Grants tor Supportive Services and Senior cervters (S^S)
Special Programs tor the Aging - Tide itL Part B • Grants (or Supportive Services and SecSor Centers (Sr Wheels)

93.044

93.^4

State of New Hampshire OfBce of Energy and Planntog
State m New Hampshire Depanmeni'of Heatin and Human Services

18AANHT3SP

512-500352

TOTAL

5663
111.276

116,639

Special Programs (or the Aging • Title (D. Pan C - Nutrition Services (Congregate A HO Meals)' 93.045 Stela of New Hampsmre Oepartnieni of Health and Humarr Services 5416003M 284.654

Nutrition Services kiceruive Progrwit (NSIP) 93.053 Suie ef New Htmpshrre Departmeni of Health and Hortan Services NONE

CLUSTER TOTAL

61600

4624B3

Community Services Block Gram
93.569 State of New Hampshire Department of Keaflh and Human Services 102-500731 738.731

TANF CLUSTER

Temporary Assistance for Needy FetnBes (^tiCP Workplace Success)
Temporary AssislarKa (or Needy FamlBes (JARC)

93.556

93656

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.
Stats of New Hampshira Oeperttneot of Heelih arto Hurrwi Services

16-OHHSiRWW-CSP-OS

103-500731

(y.USTER TOTAL

307.922
24.800

332:722

Hiy Care Formula Oants (Ryan Whhe.Can Prt^m) 93.917 State of. New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Series 530-500371 9.9t0

Social Servtoes Block Gram (Tide XX (&R)
Soti'al Services Block Grant [Tkle XX HO).
Sociai Services Block Gram ((Suardtarisriip) ■

9iW7
93.667

93667

Sim of Mew Hampshke'Department of Haetth and Human Sennces
Slate of Nevv Hempsnire Depwtment'of Heaith and Human S«ryices
State of New lUmpshire Depertment;ot Health and Hurtw Swvicet

.545-500387

.544.500366

102-500731

TOTAL

113,643
82.574

209.999

Promoting Sale arw Statue FarmBes/Famlfy '^ervn PrayerWion end ServtoesAXsoetiottary. 93.550 6 93692 Stata of New Hampshira CoaOtton agaihsl Domestic ano Senrel vio(w>c« SPIRDV 53.297

Praverxative HHS Block (Srani s Prevartton and Control Research 93.1366^.758 Slatted New Hampshire Domestic and Sexual Violenca SVP 6.628

Pro)eM (or Msblanca to Transltfon from Hgmdessness (PATH) 93.tS0 SUte of New Hampshire Bureau ol Homel«sness and Housing 05-95-42-423010-7926 73:172

Prevent Swuat Assault on Coflege Campuses 93JOCK University ol New Harnpshira, Durham CSAPP 678

Total U.S. Oepenmeni of HeetOi wtd Humm Serviea S  10.661.348
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scKEDULE OF EXPEicmmes OF federal AWWDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUWE 30 Mia

FEDERAU CRANTOWPROGRAM TTTLE

WecSwizstion AssUiance for Low Income Persons

To(*l U.S. Depsrviient <'al Energy

UACofPct«k>r< for Nattenwt »ni> CpriiiM.iiHx ftwvkM

Retired and Sefeor Votirtw ftogrwn

Total U.S. Corporation'lor NaUonaf M Comnunity Service

QtU and AdUi Care Food Program

Total U.S. Oepartmem ol AgriajRure

U.S^O»oirtmenH>< Homelarwl Security

Emergency Food & SheHef Program (FEMA)

Emergertcy Uanagem^ Perlermance Grants (FEMI^ -

Total U.S. Oepettmern oi Homeland Security

Crime \^m AssisterKe (VOCA)

Sexual Auautt Servicas Fprmuts Program (SASP)

OVW Tetftnicei Assistance Mtla^

Total U.S. DeparvnerH at Juuica

U.S. Deoartm^ 6t Tftimoortrtton

Formula Grants tor Rural Areas (S«aion S3i 1)

TFUUISfT' SERVICES PROGRAMS, CLUSTER
Enhanced MoOWty oi Setiiori and MMduais with OnabCiiin
Enhanced Mobility of .Seniors and Indhiduals with Oisabilities (5310 POSi NCC)

Tot^ U.Si peparunenl'of TransporlaEon

Emergertcy Soluiions Grara Proyam

Condrtuum at ̂ re Program (HOlPi

Total U.S Depanmetv of Housing and Urban Oe««lopmant

FEDERAL

cfoa'
NUMBER

PASS>THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAI^

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S FEDERAL
NUMBER EXPENDfTURES

#1.M2 State ̂  New Hampshire Gowior^ Office of Energy f Comrnut«y Services'

94.002

tO.SSS ' Slate oi New HampstareOepanmem of Educattoh

97.024

97.042 State of New Hampshife Departtneru of Satety

16.575 .Stale ol Nm Hampshire CMlitlan agalnsrDomestic and Sexual ViolerK*

I6.0t7 State ol Ne-w Hampshire Cpaliiion against Domestic and Seual VidetKe

16S26 Grafton County Court

20.509 Sate of New Kampsh^ Oepertmeni of Transportation

M.513 State.eOfew Hampshire Departmant of Trart^tonaiion
ro.513'' Sale of New Hanvshire Oepanmera of Transportation

14.231 Sata of New Hatrpshire Departrrtcnt of HealVi Mid Fiuman Sar^bes

14.2C7 State Of Naw'Hampshire Department of Health end Human Services

££0007935

ieSRANHOOl

NONE

EMB-2017-EP.O0O0S-S01

NONE

2017-KF-AX-0019

OVW-2016-13M9

NH-ie-X046

Bt w Be »>ie>»j»i»cr>«casrs

B« »B ae eeww SBreerteectrs'-

CLUSTER TOTAL

102-500731

ss-7ei»Bitt3-ei-cc4R) -4

273;i8e

•1 2731Rh

S  66 PM

5  66939

S  122.661

S  122.661

i  10.'406

23.298

s 33.706

s 154 433

16.176

27 55?

$ 198.161

i in 600

29.669
53.062

62.951

5 •376.7.51

% 67.203

Ui.927'

S 212.125
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SCHEDULE OF EXPEKOttURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR gNPEO MME », »1»

FEDERAL GRANTORff'ROCRAM -TtTlf

FEDERAL

CFOA

NUMBER
PASS-7HR0UCH

CRAWTOirS NAME

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTORS FEDERAL
NUMBER EXPENDfrURES

U.S.-D»o»ftmwWo«t-«bor

WWWIOA CLUSTER

WIAAviOA ABull Prvgwn
WiyvyiOA OislocanD Worur Fornwe Granis

Total U.S. Deparvtyw of LaOw

-TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

17.2S8

17.278

S«utr>m Htmoshi'* SMviceo.' Inc.
Southern New Himiw*e Saivicae. Inc

ZOiftOOCM

'2016^1004

CLUSTER TOTAL

S  39.3S0

39.058

78.308

12.243,187

NOTE A . BASIS OF PRESENTATION

^ aaome»nW9 oi e»pend^irw Federal Awards (Ihe.SchecUe) indudes the le<MrM gram acMy o( TrhCbieity Cbmmunliy Action ProQrtri. Inc. itfuMr prograrne d the fe^al government <or the ended Jurve 30. 2010; The Wormatido h
Schedule is,presented h accordance with the requfcaments ol Tlda 2 U.S.Code ol. Federal Reg«Aatior» Parl ̂ .-Ur^ym A**<slWwe fle<?v#amenfA Cos! Aiic^s, arid Atdf Regufarnems ibrFed^ AwtnD (Uri'ofm GuidvceL ̂ ause Ihe Sdwdule
presenuoreyesActodportionolmi operatiorisdTiiOountyCornrniretyAcdonPrograch, kic., 4bndlimertdedloand doesnaipra*eciiihefir>ericialpesitiott. ch«>geskinet assets. orceMflo^orthe Organteatcri.

NOTE B . SUMMARY OP SICNIFICAMT ACCOUHT1WG PQUCIES

Expenddures lepoded or» Ete SdwAAe are reported on the accrual basis e* eeoMniing. Such e»pendrtures are recognised tetowing ihe cost principles contained in Undorm Guldanca. wherein certah types ol expmSures ere not w ar* bnitad as to'
reimDursemanl. Negathmariwuritsshowri on ihe ScheduMrwrMentadfustments orcradO made in Otenemal course olbusewss to Wnounts repotted as ezpdncfores in prior yeWs.

NOTE C.tNOtRECT RATE

TrLCounty Cuuinuttty Action Program he. has elected to net use Ihe 10-percM da irkiMt indirea coal rate lAiwed undw the Ursfwrn GtAdence.
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ACTION PROGRAM. INC. PQVEK •:GONebRD.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL GONTROL^OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE-AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDTT of FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN AGGORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of-

Tri-Gounty Community Action Prograrn, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

•We have audited, in accordance with the auditing .standards generally accejDted jh'the iUhited States:of
America and the standards,applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the- United States, the financial etaternents of tri-Gounty
Comrhunity Action: Program, Inc. ;(a nonprofit: organization), which comprise the .statement of financial
position as of June. 30, 201,9. and the ̂related statements of .activities/functlonal expenses and cash'
flows for-the year then ended, and the ̂elated: notes :to the financial' statements, and have- issued our
report thereon dated. Octpber-2.i. 2019..

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning^and performing our audit ofUh.e consolidated financial statements, w;e considered Tri-Cdunty
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control pver financial reporting (internal icohtrbl) to. deterrhihe:
the audit, procedures that :are appropnatejn the circumstarices" for the purpose: of express,ing pur
opinion on; the consolidated financial staterhents; but not for the purppse:of expressingan opinion,on
the effectiveness of; TrifObunty Community Action Program Inc.'s iriternai .'cpntrpi, .Accordingly' we do
not express :an opiriipn' on; the effectiveness of Tri-Gounty Community Action: Prograrn .Inc.ls, internal
control.

A. deficiency //): Internal control exists when the design or operation of a .cpntrpi does :not allow
management or ernplpyees. irirfhe normal course of performihg their assigned functions,/t6 prevent, or
detect and -correct, misstatements on a timely basiS; A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
cprnbin'ation,of deficiencies,.Jh'internal,control, such that there is a.reasonable possibility that-a material
misSfaterrient of theventity's; financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on e.
timely basis. A-.'sighificaht deficiency is a .deficiency; or a combination of deficiencies, in,internal control,
that Is less severe than a.m.aterjal'weajcness, yet'importa^ enough to merit attention by those, charged
with gpverhance;

Our cOhsideratibn Of internal control was for the limited purpose described iri the: first paragraph of this-
:section: and was .not designed to- identify- all deficiencies tn internal ..control that; rri.ight Pe material
weaknesses'or sign,ificant:defici.encies:. Given these lirhitations, during .biir audit we did hot" Identify-any
deficiencies in internal control, that" we consider to be material " weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist:that have not been-identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-G'ounty Community Action Program Inc.'s
financial statements are fre.e from material misstatement, we performed tests of :its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was. not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or o.ther matters that .are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of pur testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organizationis internal .cpntrol or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing .Standards in considering the organization's Internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 21, 2019

North Conway, New Harnpshire
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TRI.CQUNTY-GQMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM: INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR1 PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE 'REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-Courity Community Action Program, Inc.
.Berlin, Klew Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major'Federal Program
We have^audited Tri-County Commuhlty Actidn Prbgram Ihc.'s, compliance with the types of compliance
requirements, described in \li\Q OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct arid rhateria!
effect oh each of Tri-County Cornmunity Action Program .lnc..'s major federal prograrhs' for the year
ended June 30. 2019. Tfi-County Community Action Program lnc''s major federal programs are
identified in the summary:of auditors' results section df'the accompanying schedule of-findings and
questioned costs.

Management's.Responsibifity
Management IS'responsible for compliance with the xequirements.of laws, regulations, .contracts, and
grants-appiicable to its federal, programs.

Auditors' RespohsitiUity
Our responsibility is. to express an opinion on compliance for each ofTri-Co.unty Community Action
Program Incr's major federal, programs" based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to aboye. We conducted tbuf audit of compliance in -accordance with auditing stahdards,
generally-accepted itfi the United States of America; the standards .appiicabje to finaricial. audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by- the Comptrollei' General of. the. United States;:
-and - the- audit requirements of Title, 2 U.S„ Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, .Uhiforrn
■Administrative Requirements, Cost Prihdiples, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Unifprm
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the'audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether npncompliance with the types of compliance .requirements
referred torabove that could have-a direct and material effect on a'major federal pfogfam occurred. An
audit includes exarnining, on a.test basis, evidence.about Tri-County Community Action Program Iric.'s
compliance with those requirements arid performing such other- procedures as we considered
necessary in the.drcumstarices.

We. believe that pur audit provides-a reasonable basis for our opinion on corhpliarice for each major
federal program. However, our audit does riot provide .a legal determination of Tri-County Communriy
Action Program Iric.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our ppinlon, Tri^County Community Action Program, Inc. complied," in all material respects, wjth the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on,each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of Tri-Couhty Cdmmuhlty Action Program, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective, internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
.referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-Couhty
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control over compliance with, the types of requirerhents that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the ,auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and,to test and report on ihtemal control over compliance in
accordance with Unifprrn Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the"
effectiveness of Internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-Gounty Gomrnunity Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the. design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management of employees, In the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with ia type of compliance
requirement of a federal prpgram on a timely basis. A material' weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompljance with a type of compliance requirerhent of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basiS; A significant
deficiency in internal control Over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance wilh.a type of compliance requirement of a federal program Iha.t.is less
severe than a material weakness in internal, control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
•attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in .the first
paragraph of this ;sectio.n and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in ihtemal control over
compliance, that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies; We did not Identify any
deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we-consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control o.ver compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of intemal control o.vef compliance and the results of that,testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for .any other purpose.

October21„2019
North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-Cbunty
Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control, over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of .Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

3. No' instances of noncompliarice material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program. Inc. which would be required to be reported in 'accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, .were disclosed during the audit.

4. No sigriif],canf deficiencies in internal control over rhajor federal :award programs during the audit
are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for ̂ ach Major Program and
on Internal Cor)trol over CompHiance im Accordance with the. Uniform Guidance..

5; The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal avyard programs for Tri-County
community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on alt major programs.

6. Klo audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in "this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs Included:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services. LIHEAP - CFDA #93.568

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services. Head Start - CFDA #93.600

U.S. Dept. of Energy. Weatherization Assistance for Low Income Individuals - CFDA
#81.042

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B. programs; was- $750,000:

9. Tri-County Comrnunity Action Program, inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None:

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS ■ MAJOR FEDERAL AWfARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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